

20th August, 2024

The General Manager Dept. of Corporate Services **BSE Limited** Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers Dalal Street Mumbai 400 001

Dear Sirs,

Report and Accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024

Further to our letter dated 25th July, 2024, we hereby enclose, in terms of Regulations 30 and 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Report and Accounts of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 together with the Notice dated 25th July, 2024 convening the 42nd Annual General Meeting ('AGM') of the Company on 12th September, 2024.

The aforesaid Report and Accounts and AGM Notice are also being uploaded on the Company's Website <u>www.gujarathotelsltd.in</u>.

Yours faithfully, **Gujarat Hotels Limited**

Swati Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Encl: A/a









Executive Club Exclusive room



Pool Side View



CONTENTS

Board of Directors & Committees	2
Notice of Annual General Meeting	3
Your Directors	10
Report on Corporate Governance	12
Shareholder Information	19
Report of the Board of Directors & Management Discussion and Analysis	23
CEO and CFO Compliance Certificate	36
Balance Sheet	38
Statement of Profit and Loss	39
Statement of Changes in Equity	40
Statement of Cash Flow	41
Notes to the Financial Statements	42
Independent Auditor's Report	60



BOARD OF DIRECTORS & COMMITTEES

Board of Directors

Chairman and Non-Executive Director Anil Chadha

Non-Executive Directors

Mohan Swarup Bhatnagar Cheruvettolil Kochukoshy Koshy Mahalinga Narayanan Sungita Sharma Ashish Thakar

Board Committees

Audit Committee

M Narayanan	Chairman
M S Bhatnagar	Member
C K Koshy	Member
A Thakar	Member
N Goenka	Invitee
R Mallick	Invitee
Representative of the Statutory Auditors	Invitee
Swati	Secretary

Nominations and Remuneration Committee

C K KoshyChairmanM S BhatnagarMemberA ChadhaMemberM NarayananMemberSwatiSecretary

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

- A Thakar M S Bhatnagar C K Koshy Swati
- Chairman Member Member Secretary

Company Secretary

Key Managerial Personnel

Chief Executive Officer Rohit Mallick

Registered Office

Welcomhotel Vadodara R C Dutt Road, Alkapuri Vadodara - 390 007 Telephone No. : 0265-233 0033 CIN : L55100GJ1982PLC005408 Website : www.gujarathotelsltd.in e-mail : ghlinvestors@yahoo.co.in *Chief Financial Officer Nitish Goenka

Statutory Auditors

K C Mehta & Co. LLPMCS Share TrChartered AccountantsF- 65,1st FloorVadodaraOkhla Industria

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents

Swati

MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited
 F- 65,1st Floor
 Okhla Industrial Area, Phase - 1
 New Delhi - 110 020
 Telephone No. : 011-4140 6149
 e-mail: helpdeskdelhi@mcsregistrars.com

*Upto close of business hours of 25.07.2024. Mr. Abhishek Kanodia was appointed as Chief Financial Officer effective 26.07.2024.



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

GUJARAT HOTELS LIMITED

CIN: L55100GJ1982PLC005408

Registered Office: Welcomhotel Vadodara, R C Dutt Road, Alkapuri, Vadodara-390 007

Tel: 0265 233 0033 • E-mail: ghlinvestors@yahoo.co.in • Website: www.gujarathotelsltd.in

NOTICE OF 42ND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Forty Second Annual General Meeting of the Members of Gujarat Hotels Limited will be held on **Thursday**, **12**th **September**, **2024**, at **11:00 a.m. (IST)**, through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means, for the transaction of the following businesses:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS

- 1. To consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.
- 2. To declare Final Dividend of ₹2.50 per equity share of ₹ 10/- each, for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024.
- 3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ashish Thakar (DIN: 09383474) who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

"Resolved that, in accordance with the provisions of Section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013, or any amendment thereto or modification thereof, the remuneration of ₹85,000/- (Rupees Eighty Five Thousand Only) to Messrs. K C Mehta & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN 106237W/W100829), Statutory Auditors of the Company, for conduct of audit for the financial year 2024-25, payable in one or more instalments, plus goods and services tax as applicable, and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses incurred, be and is hereby approved."

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution :-

"Resolved that, in accordance with the provisions of Sections 149, 150 and 152 read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), and Regulations 17 and 25 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Mr. Sushil Kumar (DIN: 08460461) be and is hereby appointed as a Director and also as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from 29th September, 2024 for a period of five years or till such earlier date as may be determined by any applicable statutes, rules, regulations or guidelines."

6. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

"Resolved that, in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) Mr. Arif Musa Patel (DIN: 10051869) be and is hereby appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation, with effect from 29th September, 2024."

The Record Date fixed for the purpose of determining entitlement of the Members to the Final Dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 is **Friday, 23rd August, 2024**, and such Dividend, if declared, will be paid between Friday, 13th September, 2024 and Thursday, 19th September, 2024 to those Members entitled thereto.

By Order of the Board Gujarat Hotels Limited

Place: New Delhi Dated: 25th July, 2024 Swati Company Secretary



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTES:

- i. Explanatory Statement, pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), relating to the Special Business to be transacted at this Annual General Meeting ('AGM'), is annexed.
- ii. Since this AGM is being held through Video Conferencing ('VC') / Other Audio Visual Means ('OAVM'), (a) Members will not be able to appoint proxies for the Meeting, and (b) Attendance Slip & Route Map are not annexed to this Notice.
- iii. Corporate Members are requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend this AGM, pursuant to Section 113 of the Act through e-mail at **ghlinvestors@yahoo.co.in** or by post to the Company at its Registered Office.
- iv. In terms of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Resolutions for consideration at this AGM will be transacted through remote e-voting (i.e. facility to cast vote prior to the AGM) and also e-voting during the AGM, for which purpose the Board of Directors of the Company ('the Board') have engaged the services of National Securities Depository Limited ('NSDL'). The Board has appointed Ms. Pooja Bhatia (Membership No: F7673), Proprietor, Messrs. P B & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the process of e-voting.

Detailed instructions for attending the AGM and also for e-voting are annexed.

- v. Remote e-voting will commence at 9:00 a.m. (IST) on Monday, 9th September, 2024 and will end at 5:00 p.m. (IST) on Wednesday, 11th September, 2024, when e-voting module will be blocked by NSDL.
- vi. Voting rights will be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of the Members on Thursday, 5th September, 2024 ('cut-off date'). Only those Members whose names are recorded in the Register of Members of the Company or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date will be entitled to cast their votes by remote e-voting or e-voting during the AGM. Those who are not Members on the cut-off date should accordingly treat this Notice as for information purposes only.
- vii. Pursuant to the Income-tax Act,1961, dividend income is taxable in the hands of the Members and the Company is required to deduct tax at source from such dividend at the prescribed rates. A separate communication providing detailed information & instructions with respect to tax on the Final Dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 is being sent to the Members. The said communication will also be made available on the Company's website www.gujarathotelsltd.in.
- viii. Unclaimed dividend for the financial year 2016-17 and the Equity Shares in respect of which dividend entitlements remain unclaimed for seven consecutive years will be due for transfer to the Investor Education and Protection Fund of the Central Government on 14th September, 2024, pursuant to Section 124 of the Act read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016. Members are requested to claim the said dividend, details of which are available on the Company's website **www.gujarathotelsItd.in** under the section 'Unpaid and Unclaimed Dividend' under 'Investor Relations'. The Company will not be able to entertain any claim received after 13th September, 2024 in respect of the same.
- ix. In conformity with the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, and the Securities and Exchange Board of India, the Notice of this AGM and the Report and Accounts 2024 are being sent only through electronic mode to those Members who have registered their e-mail addresses with the Company or with the Depositories.

Members desirous of obtaining physical copies of the said Notice and the Report and Accounts 2024 may send a request to the Company, mentioning their name and DP ID and Client ID/ folio number, through e-mail at **ghlinvestors@yahoo.co.in** or by post to its Registered Office.

Members who hold shares in the certificate form or who have not registered their e-mail address with the Company or with the Depositories and wish to receive the AGM Notice and the Report and Accounts 2024, or attend the AGM, or cast their votes through remote e-voting or e-voting during the AGM, are required to register their e-mail addresses with the Company by filling the form available on Company's website at https://www.gujarathotelsltd.in/2021/investor-relations/shareholders-communication/ISR-1.pdf

x. Members who would like to express their views or ask questions with respect to the agenda item(s) of the AGM will be required to register themselves as speaker by sending an e-mail to the Company Secretary at **ghlinvestors@yahoo.co.in** from their registered e-mail address, mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID / folio number and mobile number. Only those Members who have registered themselves as speaker by 5:00 p.m. on Friday, 6th September, 2024 will be able to express their views/ ask questions and / or seek clarifications at the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and / or number of speakers, depending upon availability of time, for smooth conduct of the AGM.



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Further, Members who would like to have their questions / queries responded to during the AGM are requested to send such questions / queries in advance to the Company Secretary at **ghlinvestors@yahoo.co.in** within the aforesaid time period.

xi. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding under Section 170 of the Act and the Register of contracts with related party, and contracts and bodies etc. in which Directors are interested under Section 189 of the Act will remain available for inspection through electronic mode during the AGM, for which purpose Members are required to send an e-mail to the Company Secretary at **ghlinvestors@yahoo.co.in**.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

Annexed to the Notice convening the Forty Second Annual General Meeting on Thursday, 12th September, 2024.

Item No. 5

The Board of Directors of the Company ('the Board') at the meeting held on 25th July, 2024, on the recommendation of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee ('the Committee'), recommended for the approval of the Members, the appointment of Mr. Sushil Kumar as a Director and also as an Independent Director of the Company, as set out in the Resolution. The Committee and the Board considered his rich and diverse skills, particularly in the areas of Finance, Administration, Law, Human Resource and Disaster Risk Management, among others, as some of the important requirements for this role.

The Committee and the Board are of the view that, Mr. Kumar possesses appropriate skills, expertise and competencies in the context of the Company's business and given his knowledge and experience, his association would benefit the Company.

Mr. Kumar, pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') has given his consent to act as a Director of the Company, and requisite notice, pursuant to Section 160 of the Act, proposing his appointment has been received by the Company. Declaration that he meets the criteria of independence prescribed under Section 149 of the Act and Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('Listing Regulations') has also been received by the Company. Mr. Kumar has confirmed that he is not debarred to hold the office of a Director by virtue of any order passed by SEBI or any other such authority.

The candidature of Mr. Kumar is in conformity with the requirements of the Act and the Listing Regulations. Further, in the opinion of the Committee and the Board, Mr. Kumar fulfils the conditions specified in the Act, the Rules thereunder and the Listing Regulations for his appointment as an Independent Director and he is independent from the management of the Company.

Additional information in respect of Mr. Kumar, including his brief resume, pursuant to the Listing Regulations and the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings, is provided below:

Mr. Kumar (62) is a retired IAS officer with a career spanning over 37 years in leadership/senior management roles involving plan/ policy/ programme formulation and actual field level implementation by the State and the Union Government. He completed Bachelor of Law from Delhi University and also holds a Bachelor and Masters Degree in Arts from Hindu College, Delhi University and Masters Degree in Philosophy from Punjab University.

Mr. Kumar has discharged various responsibilities starting from the Sub-divisional Magistrate to the Secretary to the Govt. of India (Ministry of Mines, National Commissions of OBC/SCs). He has also worked as Assistant Country Director of UNDP, India and as international staff with WHO. He has been associated with the Indian Council of Agriculture Research (ICAR), Ministry of Agriculture and also with Ministry of Panchayati Raj as Secretary, Additional Secretary and Joint Secretary, respectively. Currently, he is involved in formulating Model Rural Transformation Act for Govt. of India and working as Chairman of the Supreme Court directed Committee to examine functioning of elected women representatives of the Panchayats. Mr. Kumar has also authored several noted publications at national and international platforms.

Presently, Mr. Kumar is not a Director is any company. Further, he has not stepped down as Director from any listed company during the last three years.

He neither holds any share in the Company (in individual capacity or on a beneficial basis for any other person) nor is he related to any of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

Mr. Kumar would be entitled to sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board and its Committees, as provided in the Terms and Conditions of Appointment of Independent Directors of the Company which is available on the website of the Company at https://gujarathotelsltd.in/policies/policies/Terms-and-Conditions-of-appointment-of-Independent-Director.pdf. Same will also be available for inspection through electronic mode during the AGM.

Mr. Kumar and his relatives are interested in this Special Resolution. None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, or their relatives, is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this Special Resolution.

The Board recommends this Special Resolution for your approval.



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Item No. 6

The Board of Directors of the Company ('the Board') at the meeting held on 25th July, 2024, on the recommendation of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee, recommended for the approval of the Members, appointment of Mr. Arif Musa Patel (DIN: 10051869) as Non-Executive Director of the Company with effect from 29th September, 2024.

Mr. Patel, pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') has given his consent to act as a Director of the Company, and requisite notice, pursuant to Section 160 of the Act, proposing his appointment as a Director has been received by the Company. The Company has also received from him, intimation to the effect that he is not disqualified under Section 164(2) of the Act and declaration confirming that he has not been debarred from holding the office of Director by virtue of any Order passed by the SEBI or any other such authority.

Additional information in respect of Mr. Patel, including his brief resume, pursuant to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings, is provided below:

Mr. Arif Musa Patel (54) (DIN: 10051869) graduated in Science from Gujarat University. He holds over three decades of illustrious hospitality experience with a proven track record of streamlining operations in room divisions, strategic sales, brand marketing, digital marketing, revenue and distribution management along with building strong loyalty programs. He has worked with eminent brands such as Hyatt, Oberoi and Starwood across various commercial and operational leadership roles. Mr. Patel brings with him management expertise garnered through exposure in distinguished hotels of repute spread over different geographical locations and scales of operations. He joined ITC Limited- Hotels Division in August 2022.

Mr. Patel is a Non-Executive Director of Srinivasa Resorts Limited. He is not a member or chairperson in any of the committees of that company. Further, he has not stepped down as Director from any listed entity during the past three years.

He neither holds any share in the Company (in individual capacity or on a beneficial basis for any other person) nor is he related to any of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

Mr. Patel would not be entitled to any remuneration or sitting fees.

Mr. Patel and his relatives, are interested in this Resolution. None of the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, or their relatives, is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this Resolution.

The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

By Order of the Board Gujarat Hotels Limited

Place: New Delhi Dated: 25th July, 2024 Swati Company Secretary



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM AND ALSO FOR E-VOTING

I. Instructions for attending the AGM through VC / OAVM

(a) Members who wish to attend this AGM through VC / OAVM are requested to follow the steps enumerated under (II) below for login to the NSDL e-voting system.

After login, click on the 'VC / OAVM' link appearing under '**Join Meeting'** against the Electronic Voting Event Number ('EVEN') of Gujarat Hotels Limited.

- (b) The facility for the Members to join this AGM through VC / OAVM will be available from 15 minutes before the time scheduled for the AGM and may close not earlier than 15 minutes after the commencement of the AGM.
- (c) Members are requested to login to the NSDL e-voting system using their laptops / desktops / tablets with stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection for better experience. Members logging in from mobile devices or through laptops / desktops / tablets connecting via mobile hotspot or with low bandwidth, may experience audio / video loss due to fluctuation in their respective network.

II. Instruction for remote e-voting

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-voting website

A) For Individual Members holding shares in dematerialised form:

Individual Members holding securities in demat mode with NSDL

- > If you are registered for NSDL 'IDeAS' facility, you are required to follow the below-mentioned steps:
 - (a) Launch internet browser by typing the URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com and click on 'Beneficial Owner' tab under the 'IDeAS' section.
 - (b) Insert your existing user ID, password /OTP and the verification code as shown on the screen.
 - (c) After login, click on 'Access to e-voting' under value added services and you will be able to see the e-voting page.
 - (d) Click on 'evote' link available against Gujarat Hotels Limited or 'e-voting service provider NSDL' and proceed to Step 2 to cast your vote.
- If you are not registered for IDeAS, you are required to follow the below- mentioned steps:
 - (a) Launch internet browser by typing the URL: https://evoting.nsdl.com and click on 'Shareholder / Member Login'.
 - (b) Insert your existing user ID, password / OTP and the verification code as shown on the screen and agree to the terms and conditions by clicking the box.
 - (c) After authentication, you will be re-directed to NSDL e-services website wherein you will be able to see the e-voting page.
 - (d) Click on 'evote' link available against Gujarat Hotels Limited or 'e-voting service provider NSDL' and proceed to Step 2 to cast your vote.

You may also download NSDL Mobile App "NSDL Speede" facility by scanning the following QR code, for e-voting.





Individual Members holding securities in demat account with Central Depository Services (India) Limited ('CDSL')

- > If you are registered for CDSL 'Easi / Easiest' facility, you are required to follow the below-mentioned steps:
 - (a) Login at <u>www.cdslindia.com</u> and click on '**My Easi New (Token)**' or launch internet browser by typing the URL: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/home/login.
 - (b) Insert your existing user ID and password.
 - (c) After OTP based authentication and login, you will be able to view the e-voting menu.
 - (d) Click on 'evote' link available against Gujarat Hotels Limited or 'e-voting service provider NSDL' and proceed to Step 2 to cast your vote.
- If you are not registered for CDSL 'Easi / Easiest' facility, you can also directly access the e-voting page by clicking on 'e-voting' on the home page of <u>www.cdslindia.com</u> with your demat account number and PAN.

After OTP based authentication and login, select '**NSDL**' as the e-voting service provider and proceed to Step 2 to cast your vote.

For Members logging in through the websites of their Depository Participants

- (a) Login to your demat account, using the login credentials, through the concerned Depository Participant registered with NSDL / CDSL.
- (b) Click on the option available for e-voting. You will be re-directed to NSDL e-services website wherein you will be able to see the e-voting page.
- (c) Click on 'evote' link available against Gujarat Hotels Limited or 'e-voting service provider NSDL' and proceed to Step 2 to cast your vote.

Members who are unable to retrieve their user ID or password are advised to use 'Forgot User ID' / 'Forgot Password' option(s) available on the websites of the respective Depositories / Depository Participants.

B) <u>For Non-Individual Members holding shares in dematerialised form and Members holding shares in certificate</u> form:

If you are holding shares in dematerialised form and are registered for NSDL 'IDeAS' facility, you can login at https://eservices.nsdl.com with your existing IDeAS login and click on 'Access to e-voting' to proceed to Step 2 to cast your vote.

Other Members, including Members holding shares in certificate form, are required to follow the below-mentioned steps:

- (a) Launch internet browser by typing the URL: https://evoting.nsdl.com and click on 'Shareholder / Member Login'.
- (b) Insert your existing user ID, password / OTP and the verification code as shown on the screen.
- User ID:

a) For Members holding shares in demat account with NSDL.	8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID. For example, if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12*****, then your user ID is IN300***12*****.
b) For Members holding shares in demat account with CDSL	16 Digit Beneficiary ID. For example, if your Beneficiary ID is 12************************************
c) For Members holding shares in certificate form	EVEN followed by your Folio Number registered with the Company. For example if the EVEN is 111111 and your folio number is 000*** then user ID is 111111000***.

Password:

(i) If you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting, you should use your existing password for login.

Members may also use OTP based login.

- (ii) If you are using NSDL e-voting system for the first time, you would need to use your '**initial password**' for login.
- (iii) If you are unable to retrieve the 'initial password', or have forgotten your password:



Click on '**Forgot User Details / Password?**', if holding shares in dematerialised form, or Click on '**Physical User Reset Password?**', if holding shares in certificate form.

You may also send an e-mail requesting for password at evoting@nsdl.com, mentioning your name, PAN, registered address and your DP ID & Client ID / folio number.

- (c) Agree to the terms and conditions by clicking the box.
- (d) Click on 'Login'. Home page of remote e-voting opens.

Step 2: Cast your vote on NSDL e-voting website

- (a) Select the EVEN of Gujarat Hotels Limited.
- (b) Now you are ready for remote e-voting as 'Cast Vote' page opens.
- (c) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option and click on 'Submit'. Thereafter click on 'Confirm' when prompted; upon confirmation, your vote is cast and the message 'Vote cast successfully' will be displayed.

Other Instructions

- (a) Those who become Members of the Company after sending the Notice but on or before Thursday, 5th September, 2024 (cut-off date) may write to NSDL at evoting@nsdl.com or to the Company at ghlinvestors@yahoo.co.in requesting for user ID and password. On receipt of user ID and password, the steps stated above under 'Step 2: Cast your vote on NSDL e-voting website' should be followed for casting of vote.
- (b) In case of any query / grievance you may refer to the Frequently Asked Questions for Shareholders and e-voting User Manual for Shareholders available on NSDL's e-voting website www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact:
 - NSDL- by sending a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre Senior Manager at evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 4886 7000;
 - (ii) CDSL by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call toll free no. 1800 22 55 33;
 - (iii) The Company- by sending a request to the Company Secretary at ghlinvestors@yahoo.co.in.

III. Instructions for e-voting during the AGM

- (a) The procedure for e-voting during the AGM is same as mentioned under (II) above for remote e-voting.
- (b) The aforesaid facility will be available only to those Members who participate in the AGM and who do not cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM. Members who cast their votes by remote e-voting will not be entitled to cast their votes by remote e-voting will not be entitled to cast their votes again.

IV. General Information

- (a) There will be one vote for every DP ID & Client ID / Folio No. irrespective of the number of joint holders.
- (b) The Results of voting will be declared within two working days from the conclusion of the AGM and the Resolutions will be deemed to be passed on the date of the AGM, subject to receipt of requisite number of votes. The declared Results, along with the Scrutinizer's Report, will be available forthwith on the Company's website www.gujarathotelsltd.in under the section 'Investor Relations' and on the website of NSDL; such Results will also be forwarded to BSE Limited, where the Company's shares are listed.



YOUR DIRECTORS

A. Chadha

Anil Chadha (54), DIN: 08073567, an alumnus of Welcomgroup Graduate School of Hotel Administration, Manipal, joined ITC Limited ('ITC')- Hotels Division in 1992. He has spent his entire career with ITC Hotels Division, heading the southern region and key properties in New Delhi, Agra, Kolkata, Bengaluru and Chennai. He took over as Vice President, Operations of the Hotels Division before being appointed as Chief Operating Officer in 2019 and the Divisional Chief Executive in 2021.

With over three decades of experience, Chadha has played a pivotal role in overseeing the seamless functioning of diverse portfolio of brands of ITC's Hotels. He is acknowledged for his deep understanding of the hospitality business, strategic acumen and operational excellence. He has successfully implemented innovative service standards and efficiency enhancements across the organisation, optimizing hotel operations for superior guest experiences and earning a distinctive reputation for the brand. His sharpness at preempting industry trends is reflected in his consistent ability to create unique value propositions for customers. His people centric ethos accords priority to talent development and talent recognition. Under his astute planning, organising and motivational skills, ITC showcased exceptional culinary marvels at the much acclaimed and most prestigious international event in India.

He has been conferred with numerous recognitions within the industry including – Best CEO by W.E. Global Employees' Choice Award (2022), Hotelier of the Year by BBC Food Awards (2018), General Manager of the Year by Business World Hotelier (2016) and Hotelier of the Year by Vir Sanghvi, Brunch Magazine- Hindustan Times, Brunch (2014) amongst many others.

Other Directorships

Name of the company	Position
Fortune Park Hotels Limited	Chairman and Non-Executive Director
WelcomHotels Lanka (Private) Limited*	Chairman and Non-Executive Director
International Travel House Limited#	Chairman and Non-Executive Director
Maharaja Heritage Resorts Limited	Non-Executive Director
ITC Hotels Limited	Non-Executive Director

Committee Membership of other companies

Name of the company	Committee	Position
International Travel House Limited	Nominations & Remuneration Committee	Member

M. S. Bhatnagar

Mohan Swarup Bhatnagar (73), DIN: 00834857, was re-appointed as a Non-Executive Independent Director on the Board of the Company with effect from 28th June, 2024. He is a Graduate from St. Stephen's College and holds a Masters Degree in Business Administration from FMS, Delhi University. He joined ITC Limited (ITC) in the year 1975.

In a long career spanning over 41 years, he held various job positions in Finance function before taking over as the Head of Finance for Hotels Division of ITC. Subsequently, he held charge of Growth and Development for the Hotels Business as Executive Vice President. He was also a member of the Management Committee of the Hotels Division and was on the Board of various joint venture and subsidiary companies of ITC. He retired from ITC in September, 2013.

Post retirement, he is actively involved in angel investing and mentoring select start-up ventures.

Bhatnagar does not hold directorship in any other company.

C. K. Koshy

Cheruvettolil Kochukoshy Koshy (79), DIN: 01478704, was appointed as a Non-Executive Independent Director on the Board of the Company on 1st May, 2007. He holds a Masters Degree of Arts in Political Science and Public Administration. He joined the Indian Administrative Service in 1968, when he was allotted to the Gujarat Cadre, and superannuated in February, 2005.

In a long career spanning over 37 years, Koshy has held several eminent positions including those of Additional Chief Secretary - Department of Revenue, Industries and Mines, Tourism and Civil Aviation and Finance, and Principal Secretary to the Chief Minister. He served the Government of India as Joint Secretary & Financial Advisor to the Department of Atomic Energy, and as Executive Director of Nuclear Power Corporation of India Limited. He has also held the posts of Managing Director of the Tourism Corporation of Gujarat, Sardar Sarovar Narmada Nigam, Gujarat State Small Industries Corporation and Girinar Scooter Limited. He was the Joint Managing Director of Gujarat Industrial Investment Corporation and Chairman of Gujarat State Petroleum Corporation Limited, Gujarat State Petronet Limited and Gujarat Energy Research and Management Institute.

Post retirement, Koshy has been a consultant to the Department for International Development- UK, the World Bank and to the Department of Personnel and Administrative Reforms, Government of India. He was appointed Professor Emeritus in the faculty of Planning and Public Policy at CEPT University. He has also served as Advisor at CEPT Research and Development Foundation at CEPT University.

Koshy does not hold directorship of any other company.

M. Narayanan

Mahalinga Narayanan (79), DIN: 00159288, was appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director on the Board of the Company on 10th January, 2008. He is a Graduate in Law, Masters in Commerce, Diploma Holder in Business Management and holds certified Associated Membership of the Indian Institute of Bankers. He has rich experience of over four decades in Banking, Project Finance, Administration and related areas.

Narayanan started his career with the Reserve Bank of India in 1964 and moved over to the Bank of Baroda in 1969 and continued till March, 1985. During his tenure in Bank of Baroda, he worked in all departments of commercial banking operation and was in-charge of large branches of the Bank. In April, 1985,



YOUR DIRECTORS

he joined Industrial Finance Corporation of India and held senior management positions. In October, 1997, he joined Tourism Finance Corporation of India Limited as Managing Director and rose to the position of Chairman and Managing Director, which position he held till his retirement in September, 2006. He was conferred with "Udyog Rattan Award" in the year 2005 by the Institute of Economic Studies, New Delhi.

Other Directorships

Name of the company	Positio	Position	
Cox & Kings Limited [#] Independent Director			
Committee Membership of other companies			
Name of the company	Committee	Position	
Cox & Kings Limited	Audit Committee	Chairman	

Committee

Remuneration Committee

Stakeholders Relationship

Member

Member

S. Sharma

Sungita Sharma (61), DIN:10590445, was appointed as a Non-Executive Independent Director on the Board of the Company on 15th May, 2024. She is a retired IRS officer having over 35 years of experience as tax administrator. She holds a Masters Degree in English Literature from Jammu University and Masters Degree in Philosophy in Strategic Studies from Annamalai University, Chennai & National Defense College. She joined Indian Revenue Service in 1986.

In her illustrious career, she held key positions with Central Board of Indirect Taxes and Customs (CBIC) as Principal Chief Commissioner, Chief Commissioner, Principal Commissioner and Commissioner and in these capacities has administered the tax jurisdictions of Pune, Mumbai, Tamil Nadu & Puducherry and Delhi. As DG (West), DGGI, the investigation wing of CBIC, she has held jurisdiction over the states of Gujarat, Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh and Goa. She was also incharge of the Vigilance and anti-corruption Unit of DGoV, CBIC in Mumbai.

Prior to her retirement, she was the Special Secretary and Member in CBIC and introduced extensive use of technology to bring about accountability, transparency and promptitude in HR, Vigilance, Infrastructure and Budget Management of the organisation, comprising 55,000 plus people in various grades.

For a distinguished record of service, on the occasion of Republic Day 2006, she has been conferred with the Presidential Certificate of Appreciation.

Sharma does not hold directorship of any other company.

A. Thakar

Ashish Thakar (58), DIN: 09383474, was appointed as Non-Executive Director of the Company effective 13th November, 2021. He is a Chartered Accountant and also holds an MBA in Finance, with overall 31 years of experience of which 21 years has been in the hospitality industry. He joined ITC Limited ('ITC') in 1992 at its Corporate Head Office in Kolkata. During his stint with the ITC Hotels Division since 1994, he was posted at various hotels viz. WelcomgroupSearock, ITC Windsor, ITC Kakatiya, ITC Park Sheraton, ITC Sonar and thereafter at the Hotels Division Headquarters. He played a key role in the opening of ITC Kakatiya in 1996 and ITC Sonar in 2002 where he was posted as the first Financial Controller of these properties.

Between 2007 and 2011, Thakar headed the Strategic Systems Project Group at the Hotels Division which led the IT and business process transformation for ITC's Hotels. From 2012 till 2014, he worked in the Corporate Finance function at ITC's Corporate Head Office as a Divisional Manager in the Strategic Planning department.

Thereafter, Thakar led the Finance and Commercial function for all new and gestating businesses of ITC's Foods Division till 2021.

Since then he is leading the Finance, IT and Procurement functions of ITC's Hotels Division.

Other Directorships

Name of the company	Position
Landbase India Limited	Chairman & Non-Executive Director
Bay Islands Hotels Limited	Chairman & Non-Executive Director
Fortune Park Hotels Limited	Non-Executive Director
Srinivasa Resorts Limited	Non-Executive Director
Maharaja Heritage Resorts Limited	Non-Executive Director
Logix Developers Private Limited	Non-Executive Director
WelcomHotels Lanka (Private) Limited*	Non-Executive Director

Committee Membership of other companies

Name of the company	Committee	Position
Srinivasa Resorts Limited	Audit Committee	Member

- * Denotes listed Indian company whose securities are listed on a recognised stock exchange.
- * Denotes foreign company.

Notes:

- Other Directorships and Committee Memberships of Directors are as on 25th July, 2024.
- Committee Memberships cover Committees under the Companies Act, 2013 viz., Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Nominations and Remuneration Committee and CSR Committee of Indian companies.



REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors present the Company's Report on Corporate Governance pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('Listing Regulations').

THE COMPANY'S GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY

The Company firmly believes in developing a systematic and continuous process of good Corporate Governance practices across all levels. The Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance is based on strong pillars of transparency and accountability alongwith continued focus on regulatory compliances. It has empowered the Executive Management to take decisions with regard to day-to-day operations and has also created a framework for proper checks and balances to ensure that such decisions are taken with care and responsibility to meet stakeholders' aspirations and societal expectations.

The Company's governance framework is focused on its people who are its most important asset and it values its employees' integrity, creativity, ability, judgment and opinions, who in turn demonstrate the highest ethical standards and responsibility towards the shareholders. This has helped the Company take rapid strides in its pursuit of excellence.

The Company is committed to enhance shareholder value in a fair and transparent manner and has been in the forefront for benchmarking itself with the best business practices globally.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

In terms of the Articles of Association of the Company, the strength of the Board of Directors ('the Board') shall not be fewer than three nor more than twelve. Further, in accordance with statutory requirements, at least half of the total strength of the Board is required to comprise of Independent Directors. The present strength of the Board is six, including the Non-Executive Chairman, a Non-Executive Director and four Non-Executive Independent Director).

The Independent Directors play a critical role in imparting balance to the Board processes by bringing independent judgment on issues of strategy, performance, resources, standards of Company conduct, etc.

The Company is headed by an experienced and empowered Board that is entrusted with the ultimate responsibility of the management, general affairs, direction and performance of the Company and has been vested with the requisite powers, authorities and duties. The Board has delegated the general management and day-to-day affairs of the Company to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company who conducts them under the supervision of the Board. The Directors of the Company are eminent professionals, with experience in business / finance / public administration and enterprises. The Board Diversity Policy of the Company requires the Board to have balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company. The Directors of the Company possess the skills, expertise and competencies, as identified by the Board and provided in the Annexure forming part of this Report.

The names and categories of the Directors and the number of Directorships held in bodies corporate (except for Non-Profit making companies) and Committee Chairmanships / Memberships held by them in other Indian public limited companies as on 31st March, 2024 are given below. Further, none of the Directors is a member of more than ten committees or chairman of more than five committees across all the public companies in which he/she is a Director. For the purpose of determination of limit of the Board Committees, chairpersonship and membership of the Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been considered as per Regulation 26(1)(b) of Listing Regulations.

Composition of the Board as on 31st March, 2024

Category		No. of Directors	Percentage to total no. of Directors
Non-Executive Independent D		3	50
Other Non-Exe	ecutive Directors	3	50
Total		6	100
Director	Category	No. of other Directorship(s)*	No. of Membership(s) / Chairmanship(s) of Audit Committee / Stakeholders Relationship Committee of other Indian public limited companies
A Chadha	Chairman & Non-Executive Director	4	Nil
M Bhatnagar	Non-Executive Independent Director	Nil	Nil
C K Koshy	Non-Executive Independent Director	Nil	Nil
M Narayanan	Non-Executive Independent Director	1	2
B Sharma	Non-Executive Director	Nil	Nil
A Thakar	Non-Executive Director	7	1

* Details with respect to other Directorships are provided under the section 'Your Directors' in the Report and Accounts.

Meetings and Attendance

The Board generally meets at least four times a year. During the financial year 2023-24, the intervening period between two Board meetings was well within the maximum gap of 120 days prescribed under the Listing Regulations.



REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Board Agenda

Meetings are governed by a structured agenda. The Board members, in consultation with the Chairman, may bring up any matter for the consideration of the Board. All major agenda items are backed by comprehensive background information to enable the Board to take informed decisions. Agenda papers are generally circulated seven days prior to the Board meeting.

Information placed before the Board

All statutory and other significant & material information are placed before the Board to enable it to discharge its responsibility of strategic supervision of the Company as trustees of Shareholders.

The following in particular are also tabled for the Board's approval / periodic review or information:

- Annual operating plans & budgets and periodic review of the Company's business.
- Quarterly performance.
- External Audit Management Reports (through the Audit Committee).
- Status of legal compliance.
- Status and effectiveness of risk management plans.
- Succession to senior management (through the Nominations and Remuneration Committee).
- Statutory and Secretarial compliance reports.
- Show cause / demand / prosecution / adjudication notices, if any, from revenue authorities which are considered materially important, including any exposure that exceeds 1% of the Company's net worth, and their outcome.
- Write-offs / disposals, if any (fixed assets, receivables, advances etc.).
- Significant development in Human Resources / Industrial Relations.
- Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing requirements and in relation to shareholders' services.

Post-meeting follow-up system

The Governance processes in the Company include an effective post-meeting follow-up, review and reporting process for actions taken / pending on decisions of the Board and the Board Committees.

Details of Board Meetings during the financial year

Four meetings of the Board were held, as follows:

SI. No.	Date	Board Strength	No. of Directors present
1	19 th April, 2023	6	4
2	26 th July, 2023	6	6
3	13 th October, 2023	6	6
4	11 th January, 2024	6	6

Directors' attendance at Board Meeting and at the Annual General Meeting ('AGM') during the financial year

Director	No. of Board Meetings attended	Attendance at last AGM
*N Anand	3	Yes
#A Chadha	1	NA
M Bhatnagar	4	Yes
C K Koshy	4	Yes
M Narayanan	4	Yes
B Sharma	3	Yes
A Thakar	3	Yes

* Stepped down as Chairman and Non- Executive Director w.e.f. close of work on 2nd January, 2024

Appointed as Chairman and Non- Executive Director w.e.f. 11th January, 2024.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Currently, there are three Board Committees – the Audit Committee, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee and the Nominations and Remuneration Committee. The terms of reference of the Committees are determined by the Board from time to time. Meetings of Board Committees are normally convened by the respective Committee Chairman. Matters requiring the Board's attention / approval, as emanating from the Board Committee Meetings, are placed before the Board with clearance of the Committee Chairman. All the recommendations made by Board Committees during the year were accepted by the Board. Minutes of Board Committee Meetings are placed before the Board. The role and composition of these Committees, including the number of meetings held during the financial year and the related attendance, are provided below.

A. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee provides reassurance to the Board on the existence of an effective internal control environment that ensures:

- · efficiency and effectiveness of operations;
- safeguarding of assets and adequacy of provisions for all liabilities;



REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

- reliability of financial and other management information and adequacy of disclosures;
- compliance with all relevant statutes.

The role of the Committee includes the following:

- To oversee the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible;
- To recommend the appointment, remuneration and removal of Statutory Auditors;
- To recommend the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer of the Company;
- To approve transactions of the Company with related parties including modifications thereto;
- To evaluate the Company's internal financial controls and risk management systems;
- To review with the management, before submission to the Board for approval, the following:
 - a. Annual financial statements and Auditor's Report thereon;
 - b. Quarterly financial results;
 - Adequacy of internal control systems and the Company's statement, post consultation with the Statutory and Internal Auditors.
- To review the following:
 - Management discussion and analysis of financial conditions & results of operations, and matters required to be included in the Directors' Responsibility Statement;
 - Adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control systems laid down in the Company for compliance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
 - Statutory Auditors' independence and performance, and effectiveness of the audit process;
 - d. System for storage, retrieval, security etc. of books of account maintained in the electronic form;
 - e. Functioning of Whistleblower mechanism in the Company.

Composition

The composition of the Audit Committee is in conformity with the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. The Audit Committee presently comprises four Non-Executive Directors, three of whom are Independent Directors. The Chairman of the

Committee is an Independent Director. The Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and the representative(s) of the Statutory Auditor are Invitees to the meetings of the Audit Committee. The Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Committee. All members of the Committee are financially literate; with three members having accounting and financial management expertise.

The names of the members of the Audit Committee, including its Chairman, are provided under the section 'Board of Directors & Committees' in the Report and Accounts.

Meetings and Attendance during the financial year

Details of Audit Committee Meetings

Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held, as follows::

SI. No.	Date	Committee Strength	No. of Members present
1	19 th April, 2023	4	4
2	26 th July, 2023	4	4
3	13th October, 2023	4	4
4	11 th January, 2024	4	4

Attendance at Audit Committee Meetings during the financial year

Member	No. of Meetings attended
M Narayanan	4
M S Bhatnagar	4
C K Koshy	4
A Thakar	4

B. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board primarily oversees redressal of shareholder and investor grievances, reviews adherence to the service standards adopted by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, approves issue of duplicate share certificates, sub-division, consolidation, etc.

Composition

The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee is in conformity with the requirements of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations. The Stakeholders Relationship Committee presently comprises three Non-Executive Directors two of whom are Independent Directors. The Chairman of the Committee is a Non-Executive Director. The Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Committee.

The names of the members of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee, including its Chairman and the details in respect of shareholders complaints, are provided under the section 'Board of Directors & Committees' in the Report and Accounts and Shareholders Information section of the Report and Accounts, respectively.



REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Meetings and Attendance during the financial year

Details of Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meetings

Two meetings of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee were held, as follows:

SI. No.	Date	Committee Strength	No. of Members present
1	30th November, 2023	3	3
2	18 th March, 2024	3	3

Attendance at Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meetings during the financial year

Member	No. of Meetings
	attended
A Thakar	2
M S Bhatnagar	2
C K Koshy	2

C. NOMINATIONS AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nominations and Remuneration Committee of the Board, inter-alia, identifies persons qualified to become Directors, and recommends to the Board, the appointment, remuneration and removal of Directors and senior management. The Committee's role also includes formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of the Directors and the Board as a whole.

Composition

The composition of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee is in conformity with the requirements of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations. The Nominations and Remuneration Committee presently comprises of four Non-Executive Directors, three of whom are Independent Directors. The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. The Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Committee.

The names of the members of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee, including its Chairman, are provided under the section 'Board of Directors & Committees' in the Report and Accounts.

Meetings and Attendance during the financial year

Details of Nominations and Remuneration Committee Meetings

Three meetings of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee were held, as follows:

SI. No.	Date	Committee Strength	No. of Members present
1	19 th April, 2023	3	3
2	13th October, 2023	3	3
3	11 th January, 2024	3	3

Attendance at Nominations and Remuneration Committee Meeting

Member	No. of Meetings attended
C K Koshy	3
^{\$} N Anand	3
[#] M S Bhatnagar	1#
*A Chadha	N.A.
M Narayanan	3

^{\$}Stepped down w.e.f. close of work on 2nd January, 2024.

*Appointed as Member w.e.f. 28th December, 2023.

Appointed as Member on $11^{\rm th}$ January, 2024 by the Board, post closure of the Committee meeting held on same day.

Remuneration Policy

The Company's Remuneration Policy aims at attracting and retaining high calibre talent.

The Remuneration Policy, therefore, is market-led and is designed to attract & retain quality talent and leverage performance significantly.

The Company's Policy on remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees, as approved by the Board, may be accessed on its website at https://www.gujarathotelsltd.in/policies/policies/Remuneration-Policy.pdf. During the year under review, the necessary changes as required in the Policy, inorder to align the same with recent amendments in law were duly incorporated.

Remuneration of Directors

Non-Executive Independent Directors are entitled to sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board and its Committees, the quantum of which is determined by the Board. The sitting fees payable is ₹ 25,000/- and ₹15,000/- for each meeting of the Board and its Committees, respectively. The Company has not granted stock options to any of its Directors.

Details of sitting fees paid to Directors during the financial year ended 31st March, 2024:

Director	Sitting Fees (₹ in Lakhs)
	(CIII Lakiis)
M S Bhatnagar	2.20
C K Koshy	2.60*
M Narayanan	2.20

*Includes ₹10,000 pertaining to the previous financial year which was paid during the current financial year.

Note: Disclosure with respect to Non-Executive Directors – Pecuniary relationship or transaction: None



REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Performance Evaluation

Performance evaluation of the Board, the Board Committees and the individual Directors was carried out by the Board in accordance with the Policy approved by the Nominations and Remuneration Committee in this regard; brief details of the same are provided in the 'Report of the Board of Directors & Management Discussion and Analysis', forming part of the Report and Accounts.

Directors' Shareholding

Details of shareholding of the Directors in the Company as on 31st March, 2024 are given below:

Director	No. of Equity Shares of ₹10/- each held singly / jointly
A Chadha	Nil
M Bhatnagar	2,500
C K Koshy	Nil
M Narayanan	Nil
B Sharma	Nil
A Thakar	Nil

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS' MEETING

The Independent Directors at their separate Meeting, review the performance of the non-Independent Directors, including the Chairman of the Company, and the Board, and also assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board.

Meetings and Attendance

During the financial year 2023-24, one Meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 18th March, 2024. All the Independent Directors attended the same.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Timely disclosure of consistent, comparable, relevant and reliable information on corporate financial performance is at the core of good governance. Towards this end, the quarterly financial results of the Company were announced within forty-five days from the end of the quarter. Audited annual results for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 along with the results for the fourth quarter, were announced within sixty days from the end of the financial year. Extract of these results were published in 'The Financial Express' (all editions) and in its Gujarati edition. Further, quarterly results, shareholding pattern and other material events & important information relating to the Company were submitted to BSE Limited through BSE Listing Centre, for dissemination on its website.

The Company's website **www.gujarathotelsItd.in** provides comprehensive information on Company's business, quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results, shareholding pattern, key Company Policies, and contact details of the Company's employees responsible for assisting investors and handling investor grievances. An exclusive section on 'Investor Relations' serves to inform and service Shareholders, enabling them to access information at their convenience.

Material events and other important information relating to the Company are submitted to the Stock Exchange and also made available on the Company's website.

Further, the Report and Accounts of the Company, inter-alia, including the Financial Statements, the Report of the Board of Directors and the Auditors' Report is sent to the Shareholders of the Company. The Report of the Board of Directors, forming part of the Report and Accounts, includes all aspects of Management Discussion and Analysis as required under the Listing Regulations. The said Report & Accounts is also available on the Company's website.

GHL CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING – 2019

The GHL Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading - 2019, as approved by the Board, inter-alia, prohibits trading in securities of the Company by the Directors and employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company.

GHL CODE OF CONDUCT

GHL Code of Conduct, as adopted by the Board, is applicable to all the stakeholders including its Directors, senior management and employees. The Code is derived from three interlinked fundamental principles, viz. good corporate governance, good corporate citizenship and exemplary personal conduct in relation to the Company's business and reputation. The Code covers GHL's commitment to sustainable development, concern for occupational health, safety and environment, a gender friendly workplace, transparency and auditability, legal compliance and the philosophy of leading by personal example. The Code is available on the Company's website www.gujarathotelsltd.in. During the year under review, the necessary changes as required in the said Code, inorder to align the same with recent amendments in law were duly incorporated.

Declaration as required under the Listing Regulations

All Directors and senior management of the Company have affirmed compliance with the GHL Code of Conduct for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024.

Place: New DelhiRohit MallickDated: 25th July, 2024Chief Executive Officer

WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY

Synopsis of the Whistleblower Policy of the Company is provided in the 'Report of the Board of Directors & Management Discussion and Analysis', forming part of the Report and Accounts. In this regard, no personnel were denied access to the Audit Committee. The Whistleblower Policy may be accessed



REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

on the Company's website at https://www.gujarathotelsltd.in/policies/policies/Whiste-Blower-Policy.pdf.

During the year under review, the necessary changes as required in the Policy, inorder to align the same with recent amendments in law were duly incorporated.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR DIRECTORS

The Company believes that a Board, which is well informed / familiarized with the Company and its affairs, can contribute significantly to effectively discharge its role of trusteeship in a manner that fulfils stakeholders' aspirations and societal expectations. In pursuit of this, executive management, through presentations at the Board meetings, provides regular updates on the financial and business performance of the Company, material changes / developments in the domestic / global corporate and industry scenario including those pertaining to statutes / legislations & economic environment and on matters affecting the Company, to enable them to take well informed and timely decisions.

Further details may be accessed on the Company's website at https://gujarathotelsltd.in/policies/2024/Familiarisation-Programme-for-Directors.pdf.

POLICY ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Policy, as approved by the Board, may be accessed on the Company's website at https://gujarathotelsltd.in/policies/2022/Policy-on-Related-Party-Transcations GHL.pdf.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

- During the last three years, there was neither any instance of non-compliance by the Company nor penalty/ stricture imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchange / SEBI / Statutory Authorities on any matter related to the capital markets.
- There are no inter-se relationships between the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.
- During the year, the Company has not entered into any materially significant related party transaction which may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. The details of related party transactions entered into by the Company during the year are provided in the 'Notes to the Financial Statements', forming part of the Report and Accounts.
- During the year, the senior management of the Company did not enter into any material financial and commercial transaction, in which they may have had potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. As on 31st March, 2024, Mr. A Deshmukh, Chief Executive Officer, Mr. N Goenka, Chief Financial Officer and Ms. S Gupta,

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer were the Senior Management Personnel. During the year, there was no change in Senior Management Personnel except for Mr. K. Chauhan, Head- Human Resources who is no more classified as a Senior Management Personnel.

- The Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement.
- During the year, the Company was not required to obtain credit rating for any debt instrument, fixed deposit programme or any other scheme involving mobilisation of funds.
- The Company did not give any loan or advance to any of the firms /companies in which its Directors are interested.
- None of the Directors of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as a Director by SEBI / Ministry of Corporate Affairs / Statutory Authorities, certificate from the Company's Secretarial Auditors confirming the above is annexed to this Report.
- Details with respect to secretarial audit of the Company, and confirmation by the Board with respect to the Independent Directors, are provided in the 'Report of the Board of Directors & Management Discussion and Analysis', forming part of the Report and Accounts.
- Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 are provided in the 'Report of the Board of Directors & Management Discussion and Analysis', forming part of the Report and Accounts.
- During the year, the Company has not issued any Global Depository Receipts or American Depository Receipts or warrants or any other convertible instrument.
- Information with respect to 'Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging Activities' is not applicable on the Company.
- The total fees paid during the year by the Company to Messrs. K C Mehta & Co LLP, Statutory Auditors and all entities in the network firm/network entities of which the Statutory Auditors are a member firm, aggregate to ₹1.21 Lakhs.
- There is no reportable agreement specified under Clause 5A of para A of Part A of Schedule III of the Listing Regulations which, either directly or indirectly or potentially or whose purpose and effect is to, impact the management or control of the Company or impose any restriction or create any liability upon the Company.
- Compliance Officer under the Listing Regulations as on 31st March, 2024- Ms. Sneha Gupta.



REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE LISTING REGULATIONS

The status of compliance with the discretionary requirements under the Listing Regulations is provided below:

1. Chairman:

The Chairman of the Company is a Non-Executive Chairman and is separate from the post of Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He does not maintain any separate office, and hence no expense in this regard is being incurred by the Company.

2. Shareholder Rights:

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of the Company are posted on the Company's website and extract of these results in the prescribed format are published in newspapers on an all-India basis.

3. Audit Opinion:

It has always been the Company's endeavor to present Financial Statements with unmodified audit opinion, i.e., without any qualification. The Statutory Auditors have issued an unmodified audit opinion on the Company's Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024.

4. Internal Audit:

The Internal Auditors submit their report to the Audit Committee of the Board.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Provided in the 'Shareholder Information' section of the Report and Accounts.

CONFIRMATION OF COMPLIANCE

- It is confirmed that the Company has complied with the requirements prescribed under Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub - regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations.
- The Statutory Auditors' Certificate that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance is annexed to the 'Report of the Board of Directors & Management Discussion and Analysis', forming part of the Report and Accounts.

ANNEXURE TO THE REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

SKILLS, EXPERTISE AND COMPETENCIES OF DIRECTORS

The Company believes that it is the collective effectiveness of the Board that impacts Company performance and therefore members of the Board amongst themselves should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company. Accordingly, the Directors should possess one or more of the following skills, expertise and competencies:

1. Leadership

Leadership experience in a commensurate sized organisation with understanding of organisational systems and processes, strategic areas and emerging business trends.

2. Strategic Insight

Ability to evaluate competitive corporate and business strategies and, based thereon, contribute towards progressive refinement of the Company's strategies for fulfilment of its goals.

3. Industry Knowledge and Experience

Domain knowledge of Hotel business and its dynamics, longterm strategies and regulatory & competitive environment.

4. Finance and Accounting

Ability to understand financial policies, accounting statements and disclosure practices to contribute to the financial / risk management policies and practices of the Company.

5. Corporate Governance

Commitment, belief and experience in setting governance practices to support the Company's compliance systems and governance policies / practices.

6. Risk Management

Ability to appreciate key risks impacting the Company's business and contribute towards development of systems and controls for risk mitigation & compliance management.





SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Details of Annual General Meeting ('AGM')

Date	Thursday, 12 th September, 2024
Venue	AGM will be held on electronic platform
Time	11:00 a.m. (IST)
Record Date for Final	
Dividend	Friday, 23 rd August, 2024
Dividend Payment Date	Between Friday 13 th September, 2024 and Thursday, 19 th September, 2024

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents

Messrs. MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited are the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents ('RTA') of the Company for carrying out share registration and other related activities of the Company.

Address for Correspondence

MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited F- 65, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area Phase – I, New Delhi - 110 020 Telephone No. : 011 4140 6149 E-mail : helpdeskdelhi@mcsregistrars.com

Shareholders holding shares in the dematerialised form should address their correspondence, to their respective Depository Participants ('DP's), other than for dividend and Report and Accounts, which should be addressed to the Company / RTA.

Shareholders are requested to provide their DP ID & Client ID / folio number(s), e-mail address(es) and contact number(s) to facilitate prompt and efficient investor servicing.

Shareholder / Investor Complaints

The Company attends to Shareholder / Investor complaints, queries and other correspondence generally within fifteen days, except where constrained by disputes or legal impediments.

During the financial year, the Company received 5 (five) complaints and all complaints were timely resolved. There were no complaints pending against the Company with BSE Limited at the end of each quarter as also on 31st March, 2024; the same position was also reflected on SCORES, the web based complaint redressal system of SEBI.

The e-mail ID earmarked by the Company for investor complaints is **ghlinvestors@yahoo.co.in**

Share Transfer System

Transfer of shares of a listed company can be effected only in dematerialised form in terms of the regulatory requirements. Accordingly, no share transfers in the certificate form were required to be effected by the Company during the financial year.

It is in this context, Shareholders who are holding shares in the certificate form are advised to consider dematerialising their shares.

The Company has a Share Transfer Committee, which considers requests from shareholders pertaining to transmission, split,

consolidation of shares, etc. As of 31st March, 2024, Share Transfer Committee comprised of the following::

A Thakar – Director	Chairman
A Deshmukh- Chief Executive Officer	Member
N Goenka – Chief Financial Officer	Member
S Gupta- Company Secretary	Member
& Compliance Officer	

Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity

The shares of the Company are traded in the dematerialised form under both the Depository Systems in India - NSDL and CDSL. The International Securities Identification Number ('ISIN') allotted to the Company's shares under the Depository System is INE621C01011.

As on 31st March, 2024, 36,30,906 Equity Shares of the Company, which translates to 95.87% of the Share Capital, stood dematerialised. The processing activities with respect to requests received for dematerialisation are generally completed within fifteen days.

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2024

	—				
No. of Shares Slab	No. of Shareholders			No. of Equity Shares	
	Total	% to Shareholders	Total	% to Share Capital	
1-500	5011	94.92	5,02,429	13.26	
501-1000	139	2.63	1,11,450	2.94	
1001-2000	67	1.27	98,534	2.60	
2001-3000	14	0.27	35,199	0.93	
3001-4000	16	0.30	56,348	1.49	
4001-5000	7	0.13	32,541	0.86	
5001-10000	12	0.23	82,811	2.19	
10001-50000	5	0.10	1,17,723	3.11	
50001 - 100000	2	0.04	1,59,335	4.21	
100001 & above	6	0.11	25,91,145	68.41	
Total	5279	100	37,87,515	100	

Categories of Shareholders as on 31st March, 2024

SI. No.	Category	No. of Shares held	% to Share holding
A 1	Promoter Holding Promoter and Promoter Group ITC Limited Russell Investments Limited Sub-Total	17,33,907 3,00,056 20,33,963	45.78 7.92 53.70
В	Non-Promoter Holding		
2	Institutional Investors		
а	Mutual Funds	NIL	NIL
b	Banks	100	-
С	Foreign Institutional Investors and Foreign Portfolio Investors	NIL	NIL
	Sub-Total	100	-
3	Others		
а	Private Corporate Bodies	1,40,545	3.71
b	Indian Public	13,27,779	35.05
с	NRIs	51,923	1.37
d	Others	2,33,205	6.17
	Sub Total	17,53,452	46.30
	Grand Total	37,87,515	100.00

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Monthly High and Low Quotes and Volume of Shares traded on BSE Limited

Year	Month	High (₹)	Low (₹)	Volume (Nos.)
2023	April	155.00	129.25	31,607
	May	170.80	139.85	37,613
	June	162.95	143.70	33,679
	July	169.90	151.30	48,380
	August	159.95	147.50	28,975
	September	164.90	151.00	41,676
	October	163.20	146.10	43,763
	November	160.80	148.10	27,420
	December	170.00	153.70	58,571
2024	January	238.90	159.50	3,99,236
	February	204.00	172.60	1,09,378
	March	194.20	158.00	63,537

Performance in comparison to S&P BSE Sensex



Note - Indicates monthly closing positions.

Listing of Shares on Stock Exchange (with Stock Code)

BSE Limited (507960)

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai-400 001				
Telephone Nos.	:	+91-22-2272 1233/4		
Facsimile No.	:	022-2272 1919		
e-mail	:	is@bseindia.com		
Website	:	www.bseindia.com		

The Listing Fee for the financial year 2024-25 has been paid to BSE Limited.

Postal Ballot

No special resolution was passed through Postal Ballot during the financial year 2023-24.

However, an Ordinary Resolution for appointment of Mr. Anil Chadha as Non- Executive Director of the Company with effect from 11th January, 2024, was passed by the Shareholders by requisite majority by way of postal ballot through e-voting. Brief particulars of the postal ballot are provided below:

- The Board of Directors of the Company appointed Ms. Pooja Bhatia, Proprietor, Messrs. P B & Associates, as the Scrutinizer for scrutinizing the postal ballot through e-voting;
- Despatch of the Postal Ballot Notice dated 11th January, 2024, along with the Explanatory Statement, to the Shareholders of the Company was completed on 29th January, 2024;
- E-voting commenced on 30th January, 2024 and ended on 28th February, 2024;

Based on the Scrutinizer's Report, the results of the postal ballot through e-voting were declared on 29th February, 2024, as follows:

Resolution	Votes in favour o	f the Resolution	Votes against the Resolution		
	No. of Shares for which valid votes cast	% of votes to total no. of valid votes cast	No. of Shares for which valid votes cast	% of votes to total no. of valid votes cast	
Appointment of Mr. Anil Chadha as Non- Executive Director of the Company, with effect from 11 th January, 2024	20,40,397	97.84	45,120	2.16	

No special resolution is presently proposed to be passed by postal ballot.

REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2024

Year	Dividend ₹ per Share
2023-24*	2.50*
2022-23	2.00
2021-22	2.00
2020-21	1.80
2019-20	2.50
2018-19	3.50
2017-18	3.50
2016-17	3.50
2015-16	3.50
2014-15	3.50

*Subject to approval of the Shareholders at the ensuing AGM

Financial Calendar

Financial Year 2024-25 (1st April – 31st March)

1	First Quarter Results	July 2024
2	Second Quarter and Half- Year Results	October / November 2024
3	Third Quarter Results	January / February 2025
4	Fourth Quarter and Annual Results	April / May 2025

Particulars of Past three AGMs

AGM	Financial Year	Venue	Date	Time	Special Resolution Passed
41 st	2022-23	AGM was held on	11-09-2023	11:00 a.m	-
40 th	2021-22	electronic platform	23-08-2022	11:00 a.m	-
39 th	2020-21		25-09-2021	11:00 a.m.	-





SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Plant Locations

The Company does not have any separate plant locations other than Welcomhotel in Vadodara which is operated by ITC Limited.

SHAREHOLDER REFERENCER

Service of Documents

In conformity with regulatory requirements, the Notice of the 42nd Annual General Meeting of the Company and the Report and Accounts 2024 are being sent only through electronic mode to those Shareholders who have registered their e-mail addresses with the Company or with the Depositories. The Company will also provide physical copies of the said Notice and the Report and Accounts 2024 to the Shareholders upon request.

Shareholders who have not registered their e-mail address with the Company are requested to register the same by sending a letter requesting for registration of their e-mail address, mentioning their name and DP ID & Client ID / folio number, through e-mail at ghlinvestors@yahoo.co.in or by post to the Registered Office of the Company.

KYC details of Shareholders holding shares in the certificate form

Shareholders holding shares in the certificate form are required to furnish to the Company their Permanent Account Number (PAN) which should be duly linked to their Aadhaar Number, specimen signature, bank account details, complete postal address including pin code, mobile number & e-mail address.

Shareholders who are yet to provide any of the aforesaid information to the Company or who would like to advise any change in such information may use the prescribed forms for this purpose, which may be accessed on the Company's website gujarathotelsItd.in or can be furnished by the Company on request.

Pursuant to the regulatory requirements, the RTA, in the absence of any of the aforesaid information, will not be able to process any service request from such Shareholders such as sub-division / consolidation / renewal of share certificates, issue of duplicate share certificates, change of address or bank particulars etc. Also, dividend will only be paid to such Shareholders once they furnish all the aforesaid information to the Company.

Dividend

The Company provides the facility for remittance of dividend to Shareholders through RTGS ('Real Time Gross Settlement') / NACH ('National Automated Clearing House') / NEFT ('National Electronic Funds Transfer').

Shareholders who have not opted for remittance of dividend through electronic mode and wish to avail the same, are required to provide their bank details, including IFSC ('Indian Financial System Code') and MICR ('Magnetic Ink Character Recognition'), to their respective DPs, in case shares are held in the dematerialised form, or to the RTA, where shares are held in the certificate form.

Pursuant to the Income-tax Act, 1961, dividend income is taxable in the hands of the Shareholders and the Company is required to deduct tax at source from such dividend at the prescribed rates. A separate communication providing detailed information & instructions with respect to tax on the Final Dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 is being sent to the Shareholders.

Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend and Equity Shares to the Investor Education and Protection Fund

During the financial year 2023-24, unclaimed dividend for the financial year 2015-16 aggregating ₹ 8,82,559/- and 14,400 Equity Shares in respect of which dividend entitlements remained unclaimed for seven consecutive years were transferred by the Company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund established by the Central Government ('IEPF'), pursuant to the regulatory requirements.

Shareholders may claim their unclaimed dividend for the years prior to and including the financial year 2015-16 and the shares from the IEPF Authority by applying in the prescribed Form No. IEPF- 5.

The due dates for transfer of unclaimed dividend and the shares to the IEPF for the subsequent financial years are given in the table below. Attention in particular is drawn that the unclaimed dividend for the financial year 2016-17 and the shares in respect of which dividend entitlements remain unclaimed for seven consecutive years will be due for transfer to the IEPF on 14th September, 2024. Separate communication for this purpose has been sent to the concerned Shareholders advising them to write to the Company to claim their dividend and notices in this regard have also been published in the newspapers. Details of such unclaimed dividend and shares are available on the Company's website www.gujarathotelsltd.in under the section 'Investor Relations' under 'Unpaid and Unclaimed Dividend'.

Financial Year	Date of declaration of Dividend	Due date for transfer to IEPF
2016-17	8 th August, 2017 1	4 th September, 2024*
2017-18	7 th August, 2018	12 th September, 2025
2018-19	7 th September, 2019	12 th October, 2026
2019-20	18 th September, 2020	25 th October, 2027
2020-21	25 th September, 2021	1 st November, 2028
2021-22	23 rd August, 2022	29 th September, 2029
2022-23	11 th September, 2023	18 th October, 2030

* The Company will not be able to entertain any claim received after 13th September, 2024.

In terms of regulatory requirements, the Company has maintained a Suspense Escrow Demat Account. As of 31st March, 2024, there were no shares held in the said Account.



SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Depository Services

Shareholders may write to their respective Depository/DPs or to the RTA for guidance on depository services.

The contact details of the Depositories are given below:

National Securities Depository Limited

Trade World, 'A' Wing, 4th FloorKamala Mills Compound, Lower ParelMumbai-400 013Telephone No. :022-4886 7000e-mail:info@nsdl.co.inWebsite:www.nsdl.co.in

Central Depository Services (India) Limited

Marathon Futurex, 'A' Wing, 25th Floor NM Joshi Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400 013 Telephone No. : 08069144800 e- mail : helpdesk@cdslindia.com

Website : www.cdslindia.com.

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

The Global economy witnessed another year of deceleration in growth to 3.2% in 2023 (vs 3.5% in 2022) with the slowdown being largely attributable to Advanced Economies, particularly the Euro Area and United Kingdom, and structural weakness in the Chinese Economy. Advanced economies grew by 1.6% with the US Economy belying expectations of recession with a resilient performance in 2023, registering a growth of 2.5% (vs 1.9% in 2022). Emerging markets and Developing Economies grew at a relatively faster pace of 4.3% (vs 4.1% in 2022), though remaining well below the long period average. The recent conflicts in the Middle East, extreme weather events and the overlapping shocks of the past few years in the form of COVID pandemic, Russia-Ukraine conflict, unprecedented inflation and subsequent sharp increase in interest rates have rendered the global macroeconomic environment highly uncertain and unstable.

Going forward, aggregate global economic growth as per International Monetary Fund (IMF) estimates is expected to remain subdued at 3.2% in 2024, well below the historical (2009-2019) annual average of 3.8%. In 2024, Advanced economies are projected to grow at 1.7% while Emerging Markets and Developing Economies are estimated to grow at 4.2%.

India remained a relatively bright spot amidst the global slowdown, recording robust Real GDP growth of 7.6% in the Financial Year 2023-24. Growth was primarily driven by fixed investments led by Government's thrust on infrastructure creation and household investments in real estate.

The global tourism industry demonstrated remarkable resilience and adaptability in 2023. During the year, tourist arrivals internationally were 1,286 million, showing a 34% increase visà-vis 2022 and 88% recovery from the pre-pandemic levels of 2019.

The United Nations World Tourism Organisation (UNWTO) expects international tourism to fully recover to pre-pandemic levels in 2024, with initial estimates pointing to 2% growth above 2019 levels, led by increased air connectivity, visa facilitation and a stronger recovery of Asian destinations.

The year 2023-24 was a year of record results and growth for the Indian Hospitality and Tourism Industry. Indian tourism is being driven by favourable demographics, increasing employment, higher disposable income of young middle class, robust domestic demand, increased investments and improving infrastructure and connectivity.

Foreign tourist arrivals in India for the year 2023 were 9.23 million in comparison with 6.43 million in 2022, registering a growth of 44%. However, the arrivals, which included G20 related business travel in the same year, accounted for only 85% of 2019 figures, when foreign tourist arrivals touched 10.93 million. This clearly indicates future demand potential arising from a revival and growth of the tourism sector.

India's hotel sector is enjoying an Amrit Kaal (Era of Elixir), with another year of record results and growth, achieving All-India Average Daily Rate(ADR) of ₹ 7500, alongside 3 markets with ADR over ₹ 10000. Room demand per day in the year 2023-24 was by 65% and 19%, compared to 2015 and 2019, respectively.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, your Company earned license fees of ₹344.02 lakhs (previous year ₹366.10 lakhs) from ITC Limited ('ITC') and total income of ₹633.21 lakhs (previous year ₹563.18 lakhs). Total income showed an increase during the year 2023-24, mainly due to increase in Other Income. Pre and post-tax profits increased to ₹585.27 lakhs (previous year ₹516.82 lakhs) and ₹472.24 lakhs (previous year ₹425.19 lakhs), respectively.

PROFIT, DIVIDENDS AND RETAINED EARNINGS

		(₹ in Lakhs)
PROFITS	2023-24	2022-23
a. Profit Before Tax	585.27	516.82
b. Tax Expense		
Current Tax	77.06	87.57
Deferred Tax	35.97	4.06
c. Profit for the year	472.24	425.19
d. Other Comprehensive Income	-	-
e. Total Comprehensive Income	472.24	425.19
STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNING	S	
a. At the beginning of the year	3,335.71	2,986.27
b. Add: Total Comprehensive Income	472.24	425.19
c. Less: Dividend paid	75.75	75.75
d. At the end of the year	3,732.20	3,335.71

Your Directors are pleased to recommend Final Dividend of ₹2.50 per Equity Share of ₹ 10/- each (previous year ₹2.00 per Equity Share) for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. Total cash outflow on account of Final Dividend will be ₹94.69 lakhs (previous year ₹75.75 lakhs).

Details of changes in Key Financial Ratio and Return on Net Worth

Pursuant to Schedule V (B) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('Listing Regulations'), there has been no significant change (25% or more) in any key financial ratio(s). Change in Return on Net Worth of your Company is summarized below:

Financial Ratio	2023-24	2022-23	% Change	Reason for change
Return on Net Worth (%)	11.20	11.07	0.13	Increase in Other Income in the current year

HOTEL OPERATIONS

Your Company's Hotel, Welcomhotel Vadodara, licensed to ITC recorded an income of ₹ 2,302.63 lakhs during the year as compared to ₹ 2,456.87 lakhs in the previous year.



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Food & Beverage segment of your Company's Hotel continues to be a major strength. The Peshawri restaurant & the Welcomcafe Cambay are leaders in premium dining segment.

As reported earlier, your Company has filed a writ petition in the Gujarat High Court seeking that the Gujarat State Government be directed to take action on your Company's application to have the leasehold land of the Hotel converted to freehold and transferred to your Company as per the existing government policy in this regard. The Hon'ble High Court passed an Order on 24th December, 2014 restraining the State Government from disturbing the peaceful and actual possession of the Company over the hotel property in any manner including construction thereon. The writ petition is pending.

Your Company is also making all efforts for expeditious conversion of land from leasehold to freehold or in the alternative, extension of the Lease. For further details, please refer to Note No. 20A to the Financial Statements..

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Your Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Your Company is managed by the Board of Directors ('the Board') and the Executive Management with clearly defined roles, responsibilities and authorities. The Executive Management is responsible for the day-to-day conduct of the affairs of the Company, within the overall framework approved by the Board. GHL Code of Conduct requires the Management to conform to the financial and accounting policies, systems and processes, conduct business ethically and ensure strict compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. The Code of Conduct has been widely communicated at all levels and provide the foundation for Internal Financial Controls with reference to your Company's Financial Statements.

Your Company's Financial Statements are prepared on the basis of the Material Accounting Policies that are carefully selected by the Management and approved by the Audit Committee and the Board. These Policies are reviewed and updated from time to time and audited by the Internal Auditor whose findings and recommendations are reviewed by the Audit Committee and tracked through till implementation.

Your Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements. These have been designed to provide reasonable assurance with regard to recording and providing reliable financial information; complying with applicable statutes; and ensuring that transactions are carried out with proper authorisation. Such controls have been assessed during the year taking into consideration the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Based on the results of this assessment carried out by the Management, no reportable material weakness or significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal financial controls was observed. Nonetheless, your Company recognises that any internal financial control framework, no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations and accordingly, regular audit and review processes are undertaken to ensure that such systems are reinforced on an ongoing basis.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company continues to focus on a system-based approach to manage its business risks. Backed by strong internal control systems, the current Risk Management Framework consists of the following key elements:

- The Board has clearly laid down the roles and responsibilities of the Executive Management in relation to risk management covering a range of responsibilities, from strategic to operational. These role definitions, inter-alia, provide the foundation for appropriate risk management procedures, their effective implementation and independent monitoring and reporting by Internal Auditor.
- A combination of policies and procedures, bring robustness to the process of ensuring that business risks are effectively addressed.
- Appropriate structures are in place to proactively monitor and manage the inherent risks in business with unique / relatively high-risk profiles.
- Internal Audit, an independent and external function carries out risk focused audits, enabling identification of areas where risk management processes may need to be further strengthened. These audits are conducted by M/s Shah & Talati, Chartered Accountants who are the Internal Auditor of the Company. The Audit Committee of the Board reviews Internal Audit findings and provides strategic guidance on internal controls. The Audit Committee closely monitors the internal control environment within your Company, including implementation of action plans emerging out of internal audit findings.
- A robust and comprehensive framework of strategic planning and performance management ensures realisation of business objectives based on effective strategy implementation. The annual planning exercise requires identification of top risks and sets out a mitigation plan with agreed timelines and accountabilities. Significant risks are periodically reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer who confirms that all relevant risks have been identified, assessed, evaluated and that appropriate mitigation systems have been implemented.

A combination of policies and processes adequately addresses the various risks associated with your Company's business. The risk management practices of your Company and Internal Audit processes, have been found to be relevant and commensurate with the size and complexity of its operations.

AUDIT AND SYSTEMS

Your Company believes that strong internal controls that are commensurate with the size and scale of your Company's operations are concomitant to the principle of governance that freedom of management should be exercised within a framework of appropriate checks and balances.



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Your Company remains committed to ensuring a mature and effective internal control environment that, inter-alia provides assurance on orderly and efficient conduct of operations, security of assets, prevention and detection of frauds / errors, accuracy and completeness of accounting records, timely preparation of reliable financial information, adherence with relevant statutes and compliance with related party transactions.

Your Company's independent and robust Internal Audit processes provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls, compliance with operating systems, internal policies and regulatory requirements.

M/s Shah & Talati, the Internal Auditor, have assured the Company that they are adequately skilled and resourced to deliver high standards of audit assurances.

The Audit Committee of your Board met four times during the year. The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee, interalia, include reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control environment, monitoring implementation of the action plans emerging out of review of significant Internal Audit findings including those relating to strengthening of your Company's risk management systems and discharging of statutory mandates.

The Statutory Auditor and Secretarial Auditor of your Company have not reported any fraud to the Audit Committee or the Board under Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') including Rules made thereunder.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

Your Company firmly believes that its employees are its core strength and accordingly development of people and providing a favorable work environment is the key priority to drive business objectives and goals.

As part of your Company's commitment to create a place where people can be successful both professionally and personally, efforts are made to create wholistic employee experience with equal importance on growth, engagement, and well-being. Endeavor is also made to provide specially crafted programs and practices to enable employees to perform at their full potential and set them up to succeed.

Your Company is dedicated in providing a safe, conducive and healthy working environment that enables its employees to work without fear of prejudice and gender bias. Your Company has put in place Grievance Redressal Procedures as per the provisions of the Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there under. Your Company has Internal Committee to ensure that adequate preventive measures are taken and grievances in this regard, if any, are effectively addressed. During the year under review, no complaint relating to sexual harassment was received.

WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY

Your Company's Whistleblower Policy encourages all stakeholders including its Directors and employees to promptly bring to the Company's attention, instances of any actual, potential or suspected instances of illegal or unethical conduct, incidents of fraud, actions that undermine the financial integrity of your Company, instances of leak of unpublished price sensitive information that could adversely impact the Company's operations, business performance and / or reputation etc. The Policy requires your Company to investigate such incidents, when reported, in an impartial manner and take appropriate action to ensure that the requisite standards of professional and ethical conduct are always upheld. It is the Company's Policy to ensure that no complainant is victimised or harassed for bringing such incidents to the attention of the Company.

The implementation of the Whistleblower Policy is overseen by the Audit Committee and no stakeholder was denied access to the Committee during the year. The Whistleblower Policy is available on the Company's website at https://www.gujarathotelsltd.in/policies/policies/Whiste-Blower-Policy.pdf

During the year, your Company did not receive any complaint in terms of the Whistle Blower Policy.

DEPOSITS

During the year, your Company has not accepted any deposit from the public / members, under Section 73 of the Act read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

DIRECTORS

Changes in Directors

During the year under review, Mr. Nakul Anand (DIN: 00022279) stepped down as Chairman and Non- Executive Director of your Company with effect from close of work on 2nd January, 2024. Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the contribution made by Mr. Anand during his association with your Company.

The Board on the recommendation of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee, at its meeting held on 11th January, 2024, appointed Mr. Anil Chadha (DIN: 08073567) as an Additional Director. His appointment, as Director, was approved by the Members of the Company through postal ballot on 28th February, 2024. Mr. Chadha was also appointed as the Chairman of your Company effective 11th January, 2024.

There were no other changes in the composition of the Board of the Company during the year.

After the close of the financial year 2023-24, Ms. Benita Sharma (DIN: 08582861) resigned from the position of Non-Executive Director with effect from close of work on 14th May, 2024. The Board at its Meeting held on 18th April, 2024, on recommendation of the Nominations and Remunerations Committee, appointed Ms. Sungita Sharma (DIN: 10590445) as an Additional Non-Executive Independent Director with effect from 15th May, 2024 and re-appointed Mr. Mohan Swarup Bhatnagar (DIN: 00834857) as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from 28th June, 2024. Further, the appointment of Ms. Sharma and re-appointment of Mr. Bhatnagar were also approved by the Members through Postal Ballot on 30th May, 2024.



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Mr. Narayanan and Mr. CK Koshy will complete their second term as Independent Directors of your Company on 28th September, 2024. Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the contributions made by them during their tenure with the Company.

The Board, on the recommendation of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee, has recommended for the approval of the Members, the appointment of Mr. Sushil Kumar (DIN: 08460461) as Independent Director of the Company for a period of five years and Mr. Arif Musa Patel (DIN: 10051869) as Non-Executive Director, liable to retire by rotation, with effect from 29th September, 2024. Appropriate resolutions seeking your approval to the above are appearing in the Notice convening the ensuing Annual General Meeting ('AGM') of your Company.

Retirement by Rotation

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act read with Article 147 of the Articles of Association of your Company, Mr. Ashish Thakar (DIN: 09383474), Director, will retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. Your Board has recommended his re-appointment.

Number of Board Meetings

Four meetings of the Board were held during the year ended 31st March, 2024 on 19th April 2023; 26th July 2023; 13th October, 2023 and 11th January 2024.

Attributes, Qualifications & Independence of Directors and their Appointment

The Nominations and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors (including Independent Directors). The criteria inter alia, requires that Non-Executive Directors, be drawn from amongst eminent professionals with experience in business / finance /law / public administration and enterprises.

In case of appointment/ re-appointment of Independent Directors, the Nominations and Remuneration Committee evaluates the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board, and also the role and capabilities required for appointment as an Independent Director of your Company.

The Board Diversity Policy of the Company requires the Board to have a balance of skills, competencies, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to your Company. The skills, expertise and competencies of the Directors as identified by the Board, along with those available in the present mix of the Directors of your Company, are provided in the 'Report on Corporate Governance', forming part of the Report and Accounts.

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the strength of the Board shall not be fewer than three nor more than twelve. Directors are appointed/ re-appointed with the approval of the Members. All Directors, other than Independent Directors, are liable to retire by rotation, unless otherwise approved by the Members. One-third of the Directors who are liable to retire by rotation, retire every year and are eligible for

re-appointment.

The Independent Directors of your Company have, inter-alia, confirmed that (a) they meet the criteria of Independence as prescribed under Section 149 of the Act and Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations, (b) they are independent from the management of your Company, and (c) they are not aware of any circumstance or situation which could impair or impact their ability to discharge duties with an objective, independent judgment and without any external influence. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions prescribed under the Act and the Listing Regulations, and are independent of the management of your Company.

The Company's Policy on remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees, as approved by the Board, may be accessed on its website at https://www.gujarathotelsltd.in/policies/policies/Remuneration-Policy.pdf.

During the year under review, the necessary changes as required in the Policy, in order to align the same with recent amendments in law were duly incorporated.

Evaluation of Board, Board Committees and Individual Directors

The Nominations and Remuneration Committee, formulated the Policy on Board evaluation, evaluation of Board Committees' functioning and individual Director evaluation, and also specified that such evaluation will be done by the Board.

Your Company believes that it is the collective effectiveness of the Board that impacts Company's performance, the primary evaluation platform is that of collective performance of the Board as a whole. Board performance is assessed, interalia, against the roles and responsibilities of the Board as provided in the Act and the Listing Regulations. The parameters for Board performance evaluation have been derived from the Board's core role of trusteeship to protect and enhance shareholder value as well as fulfil expectations of other stakeholders through strategic supervision of your Company. Evaluation of functioning of Board Committees is based on discussions amongst Committee members and are shared by the respective Committee Chairman with the Board. Individual Directors are evaluated in the context of the role played by each Director as a member of the Board at its meetings and in assisting the Board in realizing its role of strategic supervision of the functioning of your Company in pursuit of its purpose and goals. The peer group ratings of the individual Directors are collated and made available to the Chairman of your Company.

While the Board evaluated its performance against the parameters laid down by the Nominations and Remuneration Committee, the evaluation of individual Directors was carried out against the laid down parameters anonymously in order to ensure objectivity. Reports on functioning of the Committees were placed before the Board. The Independent Directors of the Board also reviewed the performance of the Chairman, other non-independent Directors and the Board, pursuant to Schedule IV of the Act and Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations.



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Key Managerial Personnel

There were no other changes in the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year.

Post the closure of the financial year 2023-24, the Board, on the recommendation of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee approved the following:

- Appointment of Ms. Swati, as the Company Secretary of your Company with effect from 25th July, 2024 in place of Ms. Sneha Gupta, who resigned from the same position with effect from close of work on 15th June, 2024.
- Appointment of. Mr. Rohit Mallick, as the Chief Executive Officer of your Company with effect from 25th July, 2024 in place of Mr. Avinash Deshmukh who resigned from the same position with effect from close of work on 5th July, 2024.
- Appointment of Mr. Abhishek Kanodia, as the Chief Financial Officer of your Company with effect from 26th July, 2024 in place of Mr. Nitish Goenka, who resigned from the same position with effect from close of work on 25th July, 2024.

AUDIT COMMITTEE & AUDITORS

The composition of the Audit Committee is provided under the section 'Board of Directors & Committees' in the Report and Accounts.

Statutory Auditor

Messrs. K C Mehta & Co LLP, ('KCM') Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 106237W/W100829), were re-appointed as the Company's Statutory Auditor with your approval at the Fortieth AGM held on 23rd August, 2022, to hold such office for a period of five years, till the conclusion of the Forty Fifth AGM of the Company.

KCM have submitted their Report on the Financial Statements of the Company which forms part of this Report and Accounts. There is no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Statutory Auditor in their Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024.

Pursuant to Section 142 of the Act, the Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has recommended for the approval of the Members, the remuneration of KCM to conduct the statutory audit of the Company for the financial year 2024-25. Appropriate resolution seeking your approval to the above is appearing in the Notice convening the ensuing AGM of the Company.

Secretarial Auditor

Ms. Nayan Handa, Company Secretary in Practice, Partner, Messrs. Mehta & Mehta, Company Secretaries was appointed by the Board as the Secretarial Auditor of your Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. The Secretarial Auditor have confirmed that your Company has complied with the applicable laws and that there are adequate systems and processes in your Company commensurate with its size and scale of operations to monitor and ensure compliance with the applicable laws.

The Report of the Secretarial Auditor, pursuant to Section 204 of the Act, is provided in **Annexure 1** of this Report. There is no qualification, reservation adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Secretarial Auditor in their Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, all contracts or arrangements entered into by your Company with its related parties were in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations. All such contracts or arrangements were approved by the Audit Committee and were in the ordinary course of business and on arm's length basis.

Disclosure on transactions entered with Related Parties during the financial year 2023-24 are also covered in the Notes to Financial Statements.

The details of related party transactions of the Company in prescribed Form AOC-2, in terms of Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are provided in **Annexure 2** to this Report. Your Company's Policy on Related Party Transactions, as adopted by your Board, can be accessed on the Company's website at

https://www.gujarathotelsltd.in/policies/2022/Policy-on-Related-Party-Transcations GHL.pdf.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under Section 134 of the Act, your Directors confirm having:

- a) followed in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;
- selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of your Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of your Company for that period;
- c) taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of your Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
- d) prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis;
- e) laid down internal financial controls to be followed by your Company and that such internal financial controls were adequate and operating effectively; and
- devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.



OTHER INFORMATION

Compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance

The certificate of your Company's Statutory Auditor, Messrs. K C Mehta & Co LLP, confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the Listing Regulations, is annexed as **Annexure 3** to the Report.

Compliance with Secretarial Standards

The Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government under Section 118(10) of the Act.

Cost Records

The Company is not required to maintain cost records in terms of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014.

Going Concern Status

During the year under review, no significant or material order was passed, by any Regulator, Court or Tribunal impacting the going concern status of the Company or its future operations.

Annual Return

The Annual Return of the Company is available on its website at https://www.gujarathotelsltd.in/Annual Return.html.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

During the year under review, the Company has neither given any loan or guarantee nor made any investment under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act.

Particulars relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange

Particulars as required under Section 134 of the Act relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange are provided below:

Conservation of Energy:

a) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

Your Company's hotel is committed to adopt eco-friendly and energy conservation practices at its hotel and has accordingly, initiated several eco-friendly processes for energy and water conservation, waste management and measures to control water, noise and environmental pollution. Routine maintenance is performed to keep all equipment in the most efficient state of operations.

As a result of the aforesaid measures, optimum utilization of energy is being achieved in electrical units, PNG and water consumption.

b) Steps taken for utilising alternate sources of energy:

NIL

c) Capital investment on energy conservation equipment: NIL

Technology Absorption:

- a) Efforts made towards technology absorption and benefits derived: NIL
- b) Expenditure incurred on research and development: NIL

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

The Hotel being a licensed property, the foreign exchange earnings and expenditure belongs to the licensee.

EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees of your Company as on 31^{st} March, 2024 stood at 155 (including employees on deputation from ITC).

The information required under Section 197(12) of the Act and Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are provided in **Annexure 4** forming part of this Report.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Report contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. When used in this Report, the words 'anticipate', 'believe', 'estimate', 'expect', 'intend', 'will' and other similar expressions as they relate to the Company are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. Your Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise. Actual results, performances or achievements could differ materially from those expressed or implied in such forward-looking statements. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements that speak only as of their dates. This Report should be read in conjunction with the financial statements included herein and the notes thereto.

CONCLUSION

Your Company continues to monitor and respond with agility to the evolving situation while managing the uncertainties in the business environment. Your Directors and employees look forward to the future with a positive attitude and stand committed to deliver their best to create a better future for all stakeholders.

On behalf of the Board

Dated: 25 th July, 2024	A Chadha	A Thakar
Place: New Delhi	Chairman	Director
DIN:	08073567	09383474





FORM NO. MR – 3 SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

[Pursuant to Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

То

The Members, **Gujarat Hotels Limited** Welcomehotel Vadodara R C Dutta Road, Alkapuri, Vadodara, Gujarat-390007

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate governance by **Gujarat Hotels Limited**, a Company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered office at Welcomehotel, Vadodara, R. C. Dutt Road, Alkapuri Vadodara GJ 390007 (hereinafter referred to as "**Company**") for the period commencing from 1st April 2023 till 31st March 2024 (hereinafter referred to as the '**Audit Period**'). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliance and expressing our opinions thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the Audit Period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, according to the provisions of:

- (i) The Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and the rules made thereunder;
- (ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;
- (iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;
- (iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (as applicable to the Company)
- (v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'): -
 - (a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;
 - (b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; and
 - (c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
 - (d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (during the period under review not applicable to the company)
 - The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-convertible Securities) Regulation,2021; (during the

period under review not applicable to the company)

- (f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; (during the period under review not applicable to the company)
- (g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (during the period under review not applicable to the company)
- (h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (during the period under review not applicable to the company)
- The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (during the period under review not applicable to the company)

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

- (i) The Applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to Board Meetings and General Meetings;
- (ii) The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

We report that during the Audit Period the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, and Standards etc. as mentioned above.

We further report that:

- (i) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
- (ii) Adequate notices are given to all Directors to schedule the Board / Committee Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and is in compliance with the provisions of the Act and Secretarial Standards, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.
- All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously/ requisite majority as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit Period the Company had the following specific events / actions having a major bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

The Company at its Annual General Meeting held on 11th September 2023 declared final dividend of Rs 2.00 per equity share for the year 2023-24.

For Mehta & Mehta, Company Secretaries (ICSI Unique Code P1996MH007500)

Place: Delhi Date: 07th June, 2024 CS Nayan Handa Partner FCS No: 11993 CP No.: 18686 UDIN: F011993F000545570

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.

ANNEXURE

Annexure: A

The Members, **Gujarat Hotels Limited** Welcomehotel Vadodara R C Dutt Road, Alkapuri, Vadodara, Gujarat-390007

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

- Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.
- 2) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
- We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.
- 4) Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.
- 5) The compliance of the provisions of corporate laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on the random test basis.

6) As regard the books, papers, forms, reports and returns filed by the Company under the provisions referred in Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3, the adherence and compliance to the requirements of the said regulations is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to checking the execution and timeliness of the filing of various forms, reports, returns and documents that need to be filed by the Company with various authorities under the said regulations. We have not verified the correctness and coverage of the contents of such forms, reports, returns and documents.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Mehta & Mehta, Company Secretaries (ICSI Unique Code P1996MH007500)

> CS Nayan Handa Partner FCS No: 11993 CP No.: 18686 UDIN: F011993F000545570

Place: Delhi Date: 07th June, 2024





ANNEXURE 2

FORM No. AOC-2

[Pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transactions under fourth proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis

a)	Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship	
b)	Nature of contracts / arrangements / transactions	
c)	Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions	
d)	Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any	NIL
e)	Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions	
f)	Date(s) of approval by the Board	
g)	Amount paid as advances, if any	
h)	Date on which the resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to Section 188	

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis

SI. No.	Particulars	Details of Contracts/Arrangements/ Transactions	
a)	Name(s)of the related party and nature of relationship	ITC Limited ('ITC'). ITC is a Promoter of the Company.	
b)	Nature of contracts / arrangements/transactions	Agreement for operating the Company's Hotel.	
c)	Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions	S Operating License Agreement (OLA) dated 24 th September 1992 for an initial period of 30 years and last renewed for another period of 30 years with effect from 1 st October, 2022	
d)	Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any	ITC pays License fees @ 15% of Net Operating Income and reimburses salary and other expenses, as per OLA. Value of transactions during the year 2023-24, was as given below:	
		- License fees: ₹ 405.94 Lakhs;	
		 Reimbursement of salary and other expenses - ₹ 671.77 Lakhs. 	
e)	Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any	13 th July 2022	
f)	Amount paid as advances, if any	Nil	

On behalf of the Board

Dated: 25th July, 2024 Place : New Delhi DIN : A ChadhaA ThakarChairmanDirector0807356709383474



ANNEXURE 3

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNENCE

TO THE MEMBERS OF GUJARAT HOTELS LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Gujarat Hotel Limited ("the Company") for the year ended on March 31, 2024, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C and D of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations").

Management Responsibility

 The compliance of condition of Corporate Governance is the responsibilities of the Management. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance with the condition of the Corporate Governance stipulated in SEBI Listing Regulations.

Auditors' Responsibility

- Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the company.
- We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the company for the purpose of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.
- 4. We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("the ICAI"), the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by

the ICAI which requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

5. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion

- 6. Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided to us and representations provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as applicable during the year ended March 31, 2024.
- 7. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Restriction on use.

8. This Certificate is issued solely for the purpose of complying with the aforesaid SEBI Listing Regulations and may not be suitable for any other purpose.

For **K C Mehta & Co LLP** Chartered Accountants Firm's Registration No. 106237W/W100829

> Chhaya Dave Partner Membership No.: 100434 UDIN: 24100434BKBFWR1859

Place: Vadodara Date: August 9, 2024



ANNEXURE 4

A. Information pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024

Name of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)	Designation	Ratio of Remuneration to Median Remuneration of all Employees ^s	Increase in Gross Remuneration over Last Year (%) [#]
A Chadha	Non-Executive Chairman	-	-
M S Bhatnagar	Independent Director	0.73:1	13*
C K Koshy	Independent Director	0.86:1	8*
M Narayanan	Independent Director	0.73:1	5*
B Sharma	Non-Executive Director	-	-
A Thakar	Non-Executive Director	-	-
A Deshmukh	Chief Executive Officer	17.55:1	6
N Goenka	Chief Financial Officer	13.80:1	20
S Gupta**	Company Secretary	3.52:1	78#

\$Based on Gross remuneration.

'Reflects sitting fees paid during the year for attending Board and Committees Meetings.

*It is not comparable for the KMP who was there only for part of the financial years 2022-23.

"Appointed as Company Secretary with effect from 18th August, 2022.

Notes

- 1. The number of permanent employees as on 31st March, 2024 was 155 (including employees on deputation from ITC Limited).
- 2. Compared to the financial year 2022-23, the figures for the financial year 2023-24 reflects that:
 - i) Median remuneration of employees –Decreased by 5%.
 - ii) Average remuneration of employees Decreased by 11%.
 - iii) Average remuneration of employees excluding KMPs Decreased by 15%.
 - iv) Remuneration of KMPs Increased by 13% due to change of KMP during the Financial Year 2022-23.
- 3. Remuneration of the Directors, KMPs and other employees is in accordance with the Company's Remuneration Policy.

Name	Age	Designation	Gross Remuneration (₹)	Net Remuneration (₹)	Qualifications	Experience (Years)	Date of commencement of employment / deputation	Previous Employment / Position Held
٦	2	3	4	5	9	7	8	6
Top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn	es in tern	ns of remunerati	ion drawn					
A Deshmukh'	54	Chief Executive Officer	52,83,934	27,43,844	Diploma in Hotel Management	28	24.03.2021	ITC Limited General Manager, Welcomhotel Jodhpur
N Goenka*	32	Chief Financial Officer	41,54,476	28,58,230	B.Com (Hons.), A.C.A., C.S.	8	16.08.2021	ITC Limited Assistant Financial Controller, ITC Grand Goa Resort & Spa
S Gupta	32	Company Secretary	10,61,295	970,896	B.A. (H) Economics, A.C.S.	7	08.08.2022	MPS Limited, Assistant Manager Corporate Secretarial
F M Rodrigues	58	Executive	905,368	863,806	S.S.C	38	23.09.1986	Sun - n Sand, Trainee Steward
R C Rana	58	Supervisor	709,310	618,852	Diploma in Engineering	30	01.10.1993	Voltas Ltd, AC Mechanic
B S Pathak	58	Technician	660,200	605,075	Diploma in Engineering	34	01.01.1990	The Panchmahal Dist Cooperative Milk Union, Registration Inspector
R K Babar	57	Senior Executive	573,337	525,222	B.Com	27	01.12.2016	Hotel Kaviraj, Executive
S A Bal	33	Chef De Parte	557,917	510,996	H.S.C	12	23.08.2022	The Hazelnut Factory, DCDP
S K Sengupta	52	Executive	565,852	508,764	B.Com	31	13.05.1995	Jindal Hotels Limited, Front office Assistant
M C M	58	General Worker	533,191	491,491	Schooling	32	18.11.1991	N.A.
	Oth	ər employees en	nployed through	out the year and in	Other employees employed throughout the year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating ₹1.02 Crores or more per annum	n aggregating ₹	1.02 Crores or more p	oer annum
					NIL			
	Otl	her employees e	imployed for a p	art of the year and i	Other employees employed for a part of the year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating ₹8.50 lacs or more per month	ion aggregating	l ₹8.50 lacs or more p	er month

* On deputation from ITC Limited Notes:

a. In respect of employees on deputation, gross remuneration disclosed as above is the deputation cost which is bome by the Company. b. For all other employees, Gross remuneration includes salary, variable pay/ performance bonus, long term incentives, allowances & other benefits / applicable perquisites borne by the Company, except provisions for gratuity and leave encashment which are actuarially

٦Ľ

determined on an overall Company basis. The term 'remuneration' has the meaning assigned to it under the Companies Act, 2013.

Net remuneration comprises cash income less income tax, surcharge (as applicable) & education cess deducted at source and employee's own contribution to provident fund. All appointments (except in case of deputed employees) are / were contractual in accordance with terms and conditions as per the Company's Rules. None of the above employees is a relative of any Director of the Company nor they hold any equity share in the Company. പ്പും

Dated: 25th July, 2024 Place: New Delhi DIN:

A Chadha Chairman 08073567 On behalf of the Board

A Thakar Director 09383474





CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS [Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To, The Members of Gujarat Hotels Limited Welcomehotel Vadodara, R C Dutt Road, Alka Puri, Vadodara-390007

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of **Gujarat Hotels Limited** ('the Company') bearing **CIN:L55100GJ1982PLC005408** and having its registered office at Welcomehotel Vadodara, R C Dutt Road, Alka Puri, Vadodara, Gujarat, India, 390007, as submitted to the Board of Directors of the Company ('the Board') for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2024 produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub-Clause 10(i) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. We have considered non- disqualification to include non- debarment by Regulatory/ Statutory Authorities.

Based on our examination as aforesaid and such other verifications carried out by us as deemed necessary (including Director Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Reserve Bank of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. No.	Name of Directors	DIN	Date of appointment
1	Mr. Mohan Swarup Bhatnagar	00834857	28/06/2019
2	Mr. Cheruvettolil Kochukoshy Koshy	01478704	01/05/2007
3	Mr. Maralinga Narayanan	00159288	10/01/2008
4	Mr. Ashish Thakar	09383474	13/11/2021
5	Mr. Anil Chadha	08073567	11/01/2024

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Mehta & Mehta, Company Secretaries (ICSI Unique Code P1996MH007500)

CS Nayan Handa Partner FCS No: 11993 CP No:18686

Place: New Delhi Date: 04thJuly 2024

UDIN: F011993F000667076 Peer Review No.: 3686/2023





CEO AND CFO COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

To,

The Audit Committee & Board of Directors Gujarat Hotels Limited

CEO AND CFO COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

We, A Deshmukh, Chief Executive Officer and N Goenka, Chief Financial Officer, certify that:

- a) We have reviewed the financial statements including the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:
 - i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;
 - ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with Indian Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.
- b) To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year ended 31st March, 2024 are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's code of conduct.
- c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting. Deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware have been disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee and steps have been taken to rectify these deficiencies.
- d) i) There has not been any significant change in internal control over financial reporting during the year under reference;
 - ii) The changes in the Significant Accounting Policies arising from the adoption of the Indian Accounting Standards have been discussed with the auditors and have been approved by the Audit Committee; and
 - iii) We are not aware of any instance during the year of significant fraud with involvement therein of the management or any employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system over financial reporting.

Place : Gurugram Date : 18th April, 2024 Avinash Deshmukh Chief Executive Officer Nitish Goenka Chief Financial Officer



THIS PAGE HAS BEEN LET BLANK MICHTONALIX

BALANCE SHEET

As at 31st March 2024				₹ in Lakhs
Particulars		Note	As at	As at
			31st March, 2024	31st March, 2023
ASSETS				
Non-Current Assets		0	400.05	407.04
a) Property, Plant and Equipment		2	123.25	127.94
b) Other Non-Current Assets		3	41.01	55.17
Total Non-Current Assets			164.26	183.11
Current Assets				
a) Financial Assets (i) Investments		4	4,278.11	3,812.44
(i) Investments (ii) Trade Receivables		5	4,270.11	164.32
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents		6	36.89	1.16
(iv) Other Bank Balances		7	29.85	37.48
(v) Other Financial Assets		8	49.14	50.33
b) Other Current Assets		3	8.40	6.16
Total Current Assets			4,513.26	4,071.89
Total Assets			4,677.52	4,255.00
EQUITY AND LIABILITY				
Equity				
a) Equity Share Capital		9	378.75	378.75
b) Other Equity			4,034.77	3,638.28
Total Equity			4,413.52	4,017.03
LIABILITIES				
Non-Current Liabilities				
a) Provisions		10	11.38	12.42
b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)		11	162.05	126.08
c) Other Financial Liabilities		12		0.55
Total Non-Current Liabilities			173.43	139.05
Current Liabilities				
a) Financial Liabilities (i) Trade Payables				
a) total Outstanding dues of micro en	terprises and.		-	-
small enterprises				
b) total Outstanding dues of creditors	other than micro		3.00	3.45
enterprises and small enterprises.		10	70.00	00.00
(ii) Other Financial Liabilitiesb) Other Current Liabilities		12 13	73.68 11.29	80.36 13.24
c) Provisions		10	2.60	1.87
Total Current Liabilities			90.57	98.92
Total Equity And Liabilities			4,677.52	4,255.00
The accompanying notes 1 to 23 are an integ	ral part of the Financ	cial Statements.		
In terms of our report of even date				
For K C Mehta & Co. LLP		On h	ehalf of the Board	
Chartered Accountants		UID		
Firm's Registration No. 106237W/W100829		Anil Chadha	Ashish	Thakar
-		Director	-	ctor
Vishal P. Doshi Portpor	-	Gurugram		
Partner M.No. 101533	L	DIN: 08073567	DIN: US	383474
	Avinash Deshmu	kh 🚺	Nitish Goenka	Sneha Gupta
Place : Gurugram	Chief Executive Of	ficer Chie	f Financial Officer	Company Secretary
Date : 18th April 2024	Gurugram		Gurugram	Gurugram
				M. No. A64380



₹ in Lakhs

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

For the year ended 31st March, 2024

	Particulars	Note	For the Year ended 31st March, 2024	For the Year ended 31st March, 2023
I	Revenue From Operations	14	344.02	366.10
II	Other Income	15	289.19	197.08
Ш	Total Income (I+II)		633.21	563.18
IV	EXPENSES			
	Employee Benefits Expense	16	18.35	17.01
	Depreciation and Amortization Expense		4.69	4.68
	Other Expenses	17	24.90	24.67
	Total Expenses (IV)		47.94	46.36
V	Profit Before Tax (III- IV)	7	585.27	516.82
VI	Tax Expense:			
	Current Tax	18	77.06	87.57
	Deferred Tax	18	35.97	4.06
VII	Profit for the Year(V-VI)		472.24	425.19
VIII	Other Comprehensive Income		-	-
IX	Total Comprehensive Income for the Year(VII+VIII)		472.24	425.19
Х	Earnings per Equity Share (Face Value ₹10/-each):	19		
	Basic (in ₹)		12.47	11.23
	Diluted (in ₹)		12.47	11.23
The a	ccompanying notes 1 to 23 are an integral part of the Financia	I Statement	S.	

In terms of our report of even date

For K C Mehta & Co. LLP Chartered Accountants Firm's Registration No. 106237W/W100829

Vishal P. Doshi Partner M.No. 101533

Place : Gurugram Date : 18th April 2024 Avinash Deshmukh Chief Executive Officer Gurugram

Nitish Goenka Chief Financial Officer Gurugram

On behalf of the Board

Anil Chadha Director

Gurugram

DIN: 08073567

Sneha Gupta Company Secretary Gurugram M. No. A64380

Ashish Thakar

Director

Gurugram

DIN: 09383474



₹ in Lakhs

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31st March, 2024

A. Equity Share Capital

			₹ in Lakhs
	Balance as at the beginning of the reporting year	Changes in equity share capital during the year	
For the year ended 31st March 2024	378.75	-	378.75
For the year ended 31st March 2023	378.75	-	378.75

B. Other Equity

	Reserv	res & Surplus	Total
	General Reserve	Retained Earnings	Total
Balance as at April 01, 2023	302.58	3,335.71	3,638.28
Total Comprehensive Income for the year	-	472.24	472.24
Final Dividend	-	75.75	75.75
Balance as at March 31, 2024	302.58	3,732.20	4,034.77
Balance as at April 01, 2022	302.58	2,986.27	3,288.85
Total Comprehensive Income for the previous year	-	425.19	425.19
Final Dividend	-	75.75	75.75
Balance as at March 31, 2023	302.58	3,335.71	3,638.28

The Board of Directors of the Company recommended a dividend of ₹ 2.50/- per share (for the year ended 31st March, 2023 - dividend ₹ 2/- per share) be paid on fully paid equity shares. This equity dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. The total equity dividend to be paid ₹ 94.69 Lakhs (for the year ended 31st March, 2023 - dividend ₹ 75.75 Lakhs), subject to deduction of Income Tax.

<u>General Reserve</u>: This Reserve is created by an appropriation from one component of equity (generally retained earnings) to another, not being an item of Other Comprehensive Income. The same can be utilized by the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

<u>Retained Earnings</u>: This Reserve represents the cumulative profits of the Company. This Reserve can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The accompanying notes 1 to 23 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

In terms of our report of even date			
For K C Mehta & Co. LLP Chartered Accountants		On behalf of the Bo	pard
Firm's Registration No. 106237W/W100829	Anil Ch Direc		shish Thakar Director
Vishal P. Doshi	Gurug	gram	Gurugram
Partner	DIN: 080	73567 D	IN: 09383474
M.No. 101533			
	Avinash Deshmukh Chief Executive Officer	Nitish Goenka Chief Financial Offi	Sneha Gupta icer Company Secretary
Place : Gurugram	Gurugram	Gurugram	Gurugram
Date : 18th April 2024	-	-	M. No. A64380



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

For the year ended 31st March, 2024		₹ in Lakhs
Particulars	For the Year ended 31st March, 2024	For the Year ended 31st March, 2023
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities PROFIT BEFORE TAX Adjustments for:	585.27	516.82
Depreciation & Amortisation expense Interest Income	4.69 (1.21)	4.68 (11.08)
Net (gain)/loss on investments mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss	(287.98)	(185.00)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES Adjustments for:	300.77	325.42
Trade Receivables, Financial Assets and Other Assets	50.15	(72.88)
Trade Payables, Other Liabilities and Provisions	(2.31)	11.03
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS	348.61	263.57
Income Tax Paid(Net)	(60.36)	(83.27)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES	288.25	180.30
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities		
Purchase of Current Investments	(539.00)	(2,257.00)
Sale/Redemption of Current Investments	361.32	1,293.45
Interest Received	0.91	41.50
Redemption / maturity of bank deposits	-	799.80
NET CASH FORM/(USED) IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES	(176.77)	(122.25)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities Dividend Paid	(75.75)	(75.75)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES	(75.75) (75.75)	(75.75) (75.75)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS	35.73	(17.70)
OPENING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS	1.16	18.86
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS	36.89	1.16
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPRISE :		
Cash & Cash equivalents	36.89	1.16
	36.89	1.16
NOTES [.]		

NOTES:

1) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".

The accompanying notes 1 to 23 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

In terms of our report of even date

For K C Mehta & Co. LLP Chartered Accountants		On behalf of the Board				
Firm's Registration No. 106237W/W100829	Anil Ch Direo		Ashish Thakar Director			
Vishal P. Doshi Partner M.No. 101533	Guruq DIN: 080		Gurugram DIN: 09383474			
Place : Gurugram Date :18th April 2024	Avinash Deshmukh Chief Executive Officer Gurugram	Nitish Goenk Chief Financial O Gurugram	-			



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Company Information & Material Accounting Policies

A. Company Information:

Gujarat Hotels Limited (the 'Company') [CIN: L55100GJ1982PLC005408] is a public limited company domiciled in India with its registered office located at Welcomhotel Vadodara, R C Dutt Road, Alkapuri, Vadodara 390007. The Company's shares are listed on the BSE Limited. The Company Operates in one segment i.e. Hoteliering and within one geographical segment i.e. India.

B. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended). The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with the relevant presentation requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for certain items that are measured at amortised cost or fair value, as explained in the accounting policies below. The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the Company's functional currency.

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period; they are recognised in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 – Presentation of Financial

Statements based on the nature of business and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, plant &equipment (PP&E) are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which represents the carrying value of PP&E recognised as at 1st April, 2015 measured as per the previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles(GAAP).

Cost is inclusive of inward freight, duties and taxes and incidental expenses related to acquisition. In respect of major projects involving construction, related pre-operational expenses form part of the value of assets capitalised. Expenses capitalised also include applicable borrowing costs for qualifying assets, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount only when it meets the recognition criteria are met as per component accounting. The carrying amount of a replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of Profit & Loss.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An item of PP&Eis derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of PP&E is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Depreciation of these assets commences when the assets are ready for their intended use which is generally on commissioning. Items of PP&E are depreciated in a manner that depreciates the cost of the assets after commissioning (or other amount substituted for cost), less its residual value, over their useful lives as specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 on a straight line basis.

PP&E's residual values and useful lives are reviewedat each balance sheet dateand changes, if any, are treated as changes in accounting estimate.

Useful lives of different class of PP&E are as follows:

Particulars	Useful Life as per Schedule II
Building	60 Years
Plant and Equipment	15 Years
Furniture's and fixtures	8 years
Office equipment	5 Years

Impairment of Assets

Impairment loss is provided, if any, to the extent, the carrying amount of assetsor cash generating units exceed their recoverable amount.

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset or cash generating unit and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

Impairment losses recognised in prior years are reversed when there is an indication that the impairment losses recognised no longer exist or have decreased. Such reversals are recognised as an increase in carrying amounts

of assets to the extent that it does not exceed the carrying amounts that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised in previous years.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Financial instruments, Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the relevant instrument and are initially measured at fair value except for trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component, which are measured at transaction price. Transaction cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value on initial recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. Purchase or sale of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date when the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial Assets:

Recognition: Financial assets includes Investments, Trade receivable, Advances, Security Deposits, Cash and cash equivalents. Such Assets are initially recognized at fair value ortransaction price, as applicable, when the company



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

becomes party to contractual obligations. The transaction price includes transaction cost unless the assets is being fair valued through the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Classification: Management determines the classification of an asset at initial recognition depending on the purpose for which the assets were acquired. The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on such classification.

Financial assets are classified as those measured at:

- (a) Amortised cost, where the financial assets are held solely for collection of cash flows arising from payments of principal and /or interest.
- (b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), where the financial assets are held not only for collection of cash flows arising from payments of principal and interest but also from the sale of such assets. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value being recognised in other comprehensive income.
- (c) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), where the assets are managed in accordance with an approved investment strategy that triggers purchase and sale decision based on fair value of such assets. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealized gain and losses arising from changes in the fair value, interest income and dividend income (if any), are recognised under 'other income' in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

Trade receivable, Advances, Security Deposits, Cash and Cash equivalents etc., are classified for measurement at amortised cost while Investment have been classified for measurement at Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),

Impairment: The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset (or group of financial assets) such as investment, trade receivable, advances and security deposit held at amortised cost are tested for impairment based on evidence or information that is available without undue cost or effort. Expected credit losses are assessed and loss allowances recognized if the credit quality of the financial asset has deteriorated significantly since initial recognition.

Reclassification: When and only when the business model is changed, the Company shall reclassify all affected financial assets prospectively from the reclassification date as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through profit or loss without restating the previously recognized gains or losses and in terms of the reclassification principles laid down in the Ind AS relating to Financial Instruments.

De-recognition: Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive benefits have expired or been transferred, and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of such financial asset.

Financial Liabilities

Trade payables and other financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the liability is extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is included in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Revenue

1. Revenue is measured at the transaction price that the Company receives or expects to receive as consideration for services rendered, net of discounts to customers and excludes taxes such as Goods and Services Tax. Revenue from the sale of services is recognised when the Company performs its obligations to its customers and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and recovery of the consideration is probable. Income from operating license fees are recognized on accrual basis in accordance with Operating License agreement. The timing of such revenue recognition is in the periods in which such services are rendered.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- 2. Interest Income is booked in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest method.
- 3. Dividend Income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the right to receive dividend is established.

Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed in the period in which the employee renders the related service on an undiscounted basis. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid within twelve months, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay the same as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be reliably estimated.

The Company makes contributions to both defined benefit and defined contribution schemes.

Contributions to Provident Fund are in the nature of defined contribution scheme and such paid/payable amounts are recognised as expense. The contributions in respect of provident fund and family pension are statutorily deposited with the Government.

The Company also makes contribution to defined benefit gratuity plan. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit obligation is calculated by independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The Company has taken a Policy with Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) to cover the gratuity liability with respect to the employees and the premium paid to LIC is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss. The difference between the actuarial valuation of the gratuity with respect to employees at the year-end and the contribution paid to LIC is further adjusted in the books of accounts.

Employees Benefit w.r.t. Leave Encashment is considered as Employees Long Term Benefit, for which the Company records the liability based on actuarial valuation computed under projected unit credit method. These benefits are unfunded.

All such Employee Benefit expenditure/provisions are reimbursed by the Licensee as per the Operating License Agreement.

Taxes on Income

Taxes on income comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Current tax in the Statement of Profit and Loss is provided as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period using tax rates and tax laws enacted during the period, together with any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and the amounts used for taxation purposes (tax base), at the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the future tax consequences to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously

Dividend Distribution

Dividends paid (including income tax thereon) is recognised in the financial statements in the period in which the interim dividends are approved by the Board of Directors or, in respect of the Company's final dividend for the year, when the same are approved by shareholders of the Company.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount can be reliably estimated. The amount so recognized is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the obligation at

the reporting date, taking in to account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources. Where there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Use of Estimates and Judgements

The key estimates and assumption used in the preparation of financial statements are set out below:

Actuarial Valuation:

The determination of Company's liability towards defined benefit obligation to employees is made through independent actuarial valuation including determination of amounts to be recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and in other comprehensive income. Such valuation depend upon assumptions determined after taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market. Information about such valuation is provided in notes to the financial statements.

ă

2 Property, Plant and Equipment	nd Equip	ment													₽	₹ in Lakhs
				Gross Block	×					Depreciatic	Depreciation / Amortisation	ation			Net Block	ock
Particulars	April 01, 2022	Additions	ii 01, Withdrawals 2022 Additions Adjustment	Marcl	Additions	n 31, 2023 Additions Adjustment	wals and March 31, April 1, For the ment 2024 2022 year	April 1, 2022	-	Withdrawals or the and year Adjustment	wals and March 31, For the ment 2023 year	For the year	Vithdrawals or the and March 31, March 31, March 31 year Adjustment 2024 202	March 31, 2024	March 31, 2024	March 31, 2023
Building	159.22		'	159.22	'	ı	159.22	159.22 32.83	4.68	'	37.51	37.51 4.69	I	42.20	42.20 117.02 121.71	121.71
Plant and Equipment*	5.12		'	5.12	'		5.12			'	'	'		'	5.12	5.12
Furniture and Fixtures*	1.09			1.09	'		1.09				'	'		'	1.09	1.09
Office Equipment*	0.02		'	0.02	'	ı	0.02			'	'	'	I	1	0.02	0.02
Total	165.45	•	•	165.45	•		165.45	165.45 32.83 4.68	4.68	•	37.51	37.51 4.69	•	42.20	42.20 123.25 127.94	127.94
* Deemed cost on transition to Ind AS on fully depreciated	on to Ind /	AS on fully	y depreciate	ed assets												

GUJARAT HOTELS LIMITED







NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

					₹ in Lakhs
	Particulars	As at 31s	st March, 2024	As at 31s	t March, 2023
		Current	Non-Current	Current	Non-Current
3	OTHER ASSETS				
	Advances other than capital advances				
	Security Deposit				
	-With Others		25.84		23.29
	- Statutory Authorities	2.00	2.00		2.00
	Other Advances (prepaid expenses)	6.40		6.16	
	Advance Tax (Net of Provisions)		13.17		29.88
	TOTAL	8.40	41.01	6.16	55.17

4 Current Investments (at fair value through profit or loss, unless otherwise stated)

SI.	Investments in Mutual Funds	As at 21a	+ Marah 2024	As at 21st March 2022
		AS dt SIS		As at 31st March, 2023
No.			Unquoted	Unquoted
1	ICICI Prudential Banking & PSU Debt Fund 11,24,750.948 Units (2023 - 11,24,750.948) of ₹10.00 each		333.56	309.83
2	ICICI Corporate Bond Fund 12,41,451.718 Units (2023 - 12,41,451.718) of ₹10.00 each		334.53	310.02
3	Aditya Birla Sun Life Floating rate Fund 72,873.121Units (2023 - 72,873.121) of ₹ 1000.00 each		235.70	218.32
4	Aditya Birla Sun Life Savings Fund 1,37,924.934 Units (2023-1,37,924.934) of ₹ 100.00 each		695.20	646.21
5	Kotak Savings Fund 18,84,512.723 Units (2023-18,84,512.723) of ₹ 10.00 each		740.06	691.69
6	HDFC Ultra Short term Fund 52,52,228.620 Units (2023 - 52,52,228.620)of Rs. 10.00 each		727.28	678.69
7	DSP Low Duration Fund 28,35,565.37 Units (2023- 28,35,565.37) of ₹ 10.00/- each		512.97	478.82
8	SBI Magnum Low Duration Fund 16053.68 Units (2023 - 16053.68) of ₹ 1000.00/- each		512.30	478.86
9	SBI Savings Fund 4,18,610.732 Units (2023-Nil) of ₹ 10/- each		169.29	-
10	Nippon India Liquid Fund 294.594 Units (2023-Nil) of ₹ 1000/- each"		17.22	-
	TOTAL		4,278.11	3,812.44

		31	As at st March, 2024	As a 31st March, 202	
5	TRADE RECEIVABLES				
	Secured, considered good		-		-
	Unsecured, considered good		110.87	164.3	2
	Which have significant increase in credit risk		-		-
	Credit impaired		-		-
	Less: Allowance for credit impairment		-		-
	TOTAL		110.87	164.3	2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

_
_
σ
ā
~
<u> - </u>
C
Ō
D
7
.=
ā
<u> </u>
0
1
S
ŏ
<u> </u>
$\overline{}$
σ
>
-
Ð
C
ð
2
Ð
ō
<u>≍</u>
ā

Trade receivables Ageing Schedule					! ≥	₹ in Lakhs
As at 31st March, 2024		Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment	ving periods fr	om due date of	f payment	
	Not Due	Not Due 6 months -1 year	1-2 years	2-3 years	More than 3 years	Total
Undisputed Trade Receivables						
- considered good	110.87					110.87
- which have significant increase in credit risk			'	'		
- credit impaired					•	
Disputed Trade Receivables						
- considered good	'	•			•	
- which have significant increase in credit risk	•					ı
- credit impaired	'					ı
Gross	110.87		•		•	110.87
As at 31st March, 2023	0	Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment	ng periods fro	m due date of _j	payment	
	Not Due	6 months -1 year	1-2 years	2-3 years	More than 3 years	Total
Undisputed Trade Receivables						
- considered good	164.32					164.32
- which have significant increase in credit risk			ı	,		
- credit impaired			'	'		
Disputed Trade Receivables			'	'		
- considered good			ı	,		
- which have significant increase in credit risk			ı	ı		
- credit impaired					•	
Gross	164.32	•	•	•	•	164.32

As at 31st March, 2023	0	Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment	ng periods fro	m due date of _l	payment	
	Not Due	Not Due 6 months -1 year	1-2 years 2-3 years	2-3 years	More than 3 years	Total
Undisputed Trade Receivables						
- considered good	164.32		ı			164.32
- which have significant increase in credit risk			ı	'		
- credit impaired		•	ı			'
Disputed Trade Receivables	•	•	ı	'		ı
- considered good	•	•	ı			'
- which have significant increase in credit risk			ı			
- credit impaired				I	·	ı
Gross	164.32		•		•	164.32

GUJARAT HOTELS LIMITED





NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

		₹ in lakhs
	As at 31st March, 2024	As at 31st march, 2023
6 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS @		
Balances with Banks		
Current Accounts	36.82	1.12
Cash on Hand	0.07	0.04
TOTAL	36.89	1.16

@ Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cheques, drafts on hand, cash at bank and deposits with banks with original maturity of 3 months or less. The Company does not have any significant cash and cash equivalents that are not available for use.

7 OTHER BANKS BALANCES				
Earmarked balances		29.85		37.48
TOTAL		29.85		37.48
8 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS		0.00		4 70
Interest accrued on Deposits Others Receivables - Unsecured, Considered Good		2.06 47.08		1.76 48.57
,				
TOTAL		49.14		50.33
	As at 31st March	As at 31st March,	As at 31st March,	As at 31st March.
	2024	2024	2023	2023
	(No. of Shares)		(No. of Shares)	₹ in lakhs
9 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL				
Authorised				
Equity Shares of ₹10/- each	1,00,00,000	1 000 00	1,00,00,000	1,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up	1,00,00,000	1,000.00	1,00,00,000	1,000.00
Equity Shares of ₹10/- each, fully paid	37,87,515	378.75	37,87,515	378.75
	01,01,010		•••,•••,•••	
A) Decenciliation of the number of Equity Charge systematic				
A) Reconciliation of the number of Equity Shares outstandi	-	March, 2024	31st N	larch, 2023
As at the beginning of the year		37,87,515		37,87,515
Add - Shares issued during the year		-		-
Less - Shares bought back during the year		-		-
As at the end of the year		37,87,515		37,87,515

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B) Shareholders holding more than 5% of the Equity Shares in the Company

	As at 31st March, 2024 (No. of Shares)	As at 31st March, 2024 %	As at 31st March, 2023 (No. of Shares)	As at 31st March, 2023 %
ITC Limited	17,33,907	45.78%	17,33,907	45.78%
Russell Investments Limited	3,00,056	7.92%	3,00,056	7.92%
Mr. Viren Shantilal Shah	2,18,197	5.76%	2,18,197	5.76%

C) Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to the Equity Shares

The Equity Shares of the Company, having par value of ₹ 10 per share, rank pari passu in all respects including voting rights and entitlement to dividend.

D) There are no bonus issue or buy back of equity shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

E) Details of shares held by promoters

As at 31st March, 2024

10

Promoter Name	No. of shares at the end of the year	% of Total Shares	% change during the year
ITC Limited	17,33,907	45.78%	-
Russell Investments Limited	3,00,056	7.92%	-
As at 31 st March, 2023			
Promoter Name	No. of shares	% of Total	% change

	at the end of the year	Shares	during the year
ITC Limited	17,33,907	45.78%	-
Russell Investments Limited	3,00,056	7.92%	-

				₹ in lakhs
		at ch, 2024		As at March, 2023
	Current	Non-Current	Current	Non-Current
) PROVISIONS				
Provision for Long Term Employee Benefits	2.60	11.38	1.87	12.42
TOTAL	2.60	11.38	1.87	12.42



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

			₹ in Lakhs
	Particulars	As at 31st March, 2024	As at 31st March, 2023
11	DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)		
	Deferred Tax Liabilities	162.05	126.08
	Total	162.05	126.08

Movement in Deferred Tax Liabilities/Assets Balances

For the year 2023-24	Balance as on 01st April, 2023	Recognized in profit or loss	Balance as on 31st March, 2024
Deferred Tax Liabilities in relation to: Other timing differences On Depreciation on PPE On gain on Investment at FVTPL	31.92 94.16	(1.15) 37.12	30.77 131.28
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)	126.08	35.97	162.05
For the year 2022-23	Balance as on 01st April, 2022	Recognized in profit or loss	Balance as on 31st March, 2023
Deferred Tax Liabilities in relation to: Other timing differences			
On Depreciation on PPE	33.07	(1.15)	31.92
On gain on Investment at FVTPL	88.95	5.21	94.16
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)	122.02	4.06	126.08

		As at 31st March, 2024		As at 31st March, 2023	
		Current	Non-Current	Current	Non-Current
12	OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES				
	Unpaid Dividend*	29.85	0.00	37.48	0.00
	Employee Related	43.83	0.00	42.88	0.55
	TOTAL	73.68	0.00	80.36	0.55

* Represents dividend amounts either not claimed or kept in abeyance in accordance with Section 126 of the Companies Act, 2013 or such amounts in respect of which Prohibitory/Attachment Orders are on record with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

13 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES		
Statutory Liabilities	11.29	13.24
TOTAL	11.29	13.24



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

			₹ in Lakhs
	Particulars	For the Year ended 31st March, 2024	For the Year ended 31st March, 2023
14	REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS		
	Operating License Fees	344.02	366.10
	TOTAL	344.02	366.10
15	OTHER INCOME		
	Interest Income		
	- Deposit with Banks- Carried at Amortised Cost	0.13	10.08
	- Deposit Others Other Non-Operating Income	1.08 287.98	1.00 186.00
	TOTAL	289.98	197.08
	Other non-operating Income	209.90	197.00
	Net gain/(loss) on financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL *	287.98	185.00
	Others (includes interest on Income Tax refund)	0.00	1.00
	TOTAL	287.98	186.00
	* Includes 4.36 Lakhs (2023 - 11.45 Lakhs) being net gain/(loss) on sale of inv	vestments.	
16	EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE		
	Salaries and Wages	531.64	575.35
	Contribution to Provident and Other Fund	46.64	51.89
		578.28	627.24
	Less: Recoveries made/Reimbursements received	(559.93)	(610.23)
	TOTAL	18.35	17.01
17	OTHER EXPENSES		
	Advertising/Sales Promotion	1.95	1.57
	Consultancy/Professional fees	4.20	4.48
	Travelling & Conveyance	2.00	2.75
	Postage, Telephone, Stationery etc.	2.07	1.50
	Miscellaneous Expenses	14.68	14.37
	TOTAL	24.90	24.67
	Miscellaneous expenses includes Auditors remuneration and expenses :		

Audit Fees0.850.85Fees for other services0.360.36



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

			₹ in Lakhs
	Particulars	For the Year ended 31st March, 2024	ended 31st
18	INCOME TAX EXPENSES		
	A. Amount recognised in profit or loss Current Tax		
	Income Tax for the Year Adjustments/(Credits) related to previous year	77.06	87.56 0.01
	Total Current Tax	77.06	87.57
	Deferred tax		
	Deferred tax for the year	35.97	4.06
	Total Deferred tax	35.97	4.06
	TOTAL	113.03	91.63
	B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate		
	Profit before tax	585.27	516.82
	Indian tax rate	25.168%	25.168%
	Income Tax expense calculated at 25.168% (2023 25.168%)	147.30	130.07
	Effects of:		
	 Different tax rate on certain items 	(34.27)	(38.45)
	Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to Current tax of prior years	-	0.01
	Income Tax recognised in profit or loss	113.03	91.63

The tax rate of 25.168% (22% + surcharge @ 10% and cess @ 4%) used for the year 2023-24 and year 2022-23 is the corporate tax rate payable on taxable profits under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

19 EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE

Profit for the year (₹ in Lakhs)	472.24	425.19
Number of equity shares outstanding	37,87,515	37,87,515
Basic and diluted earnings per share in ₹		
(Face value ₹10/- per share)	12.47	11.23

20 ADDITIONAL NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. The Company was allotted 8200 sq mtrs of land at Vadodara in 1984 and an additional land of 2548 sq mtrs in 1988 at R C Dutt Road, Alkapuri, Vadodara through GIIC (Gujarat Industrial Investment Corporation) on sub-lease for a period of 30 years on which the hotel Welcomhotel Vadodara was constructed. Lease term of land admeasuring 8200 Sq mtrs expired on 30.09.2014 and of land admeasuring 2548 sq mtrs expired on 30.11.2018.

The High Court of Gujarat in pursuance of Writ petition filed by Company in April 2013, passed an Order on December 24, 2014 restraining the State Government from disturbing the peaceful and actual possession of the Company over the hotel property in any manner. The writ petition is pending for hearing.

The Company have made necessary application to State Government for Conversion of land from Leasehold to Freehold or Extension of Lease, which is in process.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- B. There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 days during the year and also as at 31st March 2024. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.
- C. Trade payables Ageing Schedule

₹ in Lakhs

As at	Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment						Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment					
31st March, 2024	Not Due	Unbilled Payable	Less than 1 year	1-2 years	2-3 years	More than 3 years	Total					
MSME Others Disputed Dues - MSME	-	3.00	-	-	- -	-	- 3.00 0.00					
Disputed Dues - Others	-	-	-	-	-	-	0.00					
Total		3.00	-	-	-	-	3.00					

As at		Outstanding	for following	periods fr	om due d	late of payment	
31st March, 2023	Not Due	Unbilled Payable	Less than 1 year	1-2 vears	2-3 vears	More than 3 years	Total
MSME	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Others	0.54	2.91	-	-	-	-	3.45
Disputed Dues - MSME	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Disputed Dues - Others	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total	0.54	2.91	-	-	-	-	3.45

D. Defined Benefit Plan:

The Company has taken a Policy with Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) to cover the gratuity liability with respect to the employees and the premium paid to LIC is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss. The difference between the actuarial valuation of the gratuity with respect to employees at the year-end and the contribution paid to LIC is further adjusted in the books of accounts.

The accounting charge for benefits under the defined benefit obligation is calculated by independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

All such Employee Benefit expenditure/provisions are reimbursed by the Licensee as per the Operating License Agreement, hence no effect on Statement on Profit & Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

Risk Management

The defined Benefit Plan expose the company to risk of actuarial deficit arising out of investment risk, interest rate risk and salary cost inflation risk.

Investment Risks: This may arise from volatility in asset values due to market fluctuations and impairment of assets due to credit losses. These Plans primarily invest in debt instruments such as Government securities and highly rated corporate bonds – the valuation of which is inversely proportional to the interest rate movements.

Interest Rate Risk: The present value of Defined Benefit Plans liability is determined using the discount rate based on the market yields prevailing at the end of reporting period on Government bonds. A decrease in yields will increase the fund liabilities and vice-versa.

Salary Cost Inflation Risk: The present value of the Defined Benefit Plan liability is calculated with reference to the future salaries of participants under the Plan. Increase in salary due to adverse inflationary pressures might lead to higher liabilities.

These Plans have a relatively balanced mix of investments in order to manage the above risks. The investment strategy is designed based on the interest rate scenario, liquidity needs of the Plans and pattern of investment as prescribed under various statutes.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Parti	iculars	Gr	(₹ in Lakł atuity
		2023-24	2022-2
	Components of Defined Benefit Cost Recognised in Profit or Loss	31-03-2024	31-03-2023
i	a. Current service cost b. Past service cost	6.61	7.29
	c. Net interest cost	(3.80)	(3.81)
	Remeasurements a. Effect of changes in demographic assumptions	0.00	0.00
I	b. Effect of changes in financial assumptions	2.79	(5.07)
	c. Effect of experience adjustments	5.72	
(d. (Return) on plan assets (excluding interest income)e. Changes in asset ceiling (excluding interest income)	(0.75)	
	f. Total remeasurements included in OCI	9.26	2.6
	Total defined benefit cost recognized in P&L and OCI	12.08	6.1
	Net Assets /(Liabilities) recognised in Balance Sheet	31-03-2024	
	1. Defined benefit obligation at end of period	112.60	
	 Fair value of plan assets at end of period Net defined benefit liability (asset) 	152.75 (40.15)	
	Change in defined benefit obligation	31-03-2024	
	 Defined benefit obligation at beginning of period 	109.00	
	2. Current service cost	6.61	
	 Interest expenses Remeasurements gains / (losses): 	7.46	7.0
	a. Effect of changes in demographic assumptions	0	
	b. Effect of changes in financial assumptions	2.79	``
	c. Effect of experience adjustments	5.72	
	5 Benefits Paid	(18.99)	•
	6 Present Value of DBO at end of the year Change in fair value of plan assets	112.60 31-03-2024	
	1. Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period	158.00	
	2. Interest income	11.26	
	3. Actual Company Contributions	3.24	8.1
	4 Benefits Paid	(18.99)	(23.43
	5 Remeasurements Gains /(Losses) on plan assets	(0.75)	
	6. Fair value of plan assets at end of period	152.75	
	Significant actuarial assumptions	31-03-2024 7.00%	
	 Discount rate (%) Salary increase rate 	6.0%	
	3 Attrition Rate	3.0%	
	4 Retirement Age	58	5.07
	5 Pre-retirement mortality	Indian Assured	
		Lives Mortality (2012-14)	Lives Mortalit (2012-14
		Ultimate	
(6 Disability	Nil	N





NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI Sensitivity Analysis

The below sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

	DBO as at 31-03-2024	DBO as at 31-03-2023
1. Discount rate +100 basis points	106.36	103.11
2. Discount rate -100 basis points	118.04	115.54
Salary Increase Rate +1%	118.64	115.03
4. Salary Increase Rate -1%	107.05	103.47
5. Attrition Rate +1%	112.50	108.90
6. Attrition Rate -1%	112.72	109.13
Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments	31-03-2024	31-03-2023
Year 1	24.48	14.78
Year 2	9.94	20.61
Year 3	15.05	10.33
Year 4	6.36	9.44
Year 5	3.69	5.43
Next 5 years	71.10	44.22

F. Amount towards Defined Contribution Plans have been recognized under Contribution to Provident and Other Funds in Note 16: ₹ 41.88 Lakhs (2023- ₹ 42.39 Lakhs).

G. The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 18th April, 2024. Such financial statements are required to be placed before the shareholders for adoption in terms of Companies Act, 2013.

H. Figures for the previous year have been re-arranged, wherever necessary, to conform to the figures of the current year. The same does not have any material impact on the financial statements.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) had issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2023 on 31st March, 2023 amending the following Ind AS, which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023 :

- Ind AS 1, 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies.

- Ind AS 12 'Income Taxes' - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases.

- Ind AS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' – This amendment has introduced a definition of 'accounting estimates' and included amendments to help distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Company's financial statements.

21 Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures

I Capital Management

The Company does not have borrowing and aims at maintaining a strong capital base so as to maintain adequate supply of funds towards future growth plans as a going concern.



₹ in Lakhs

GUJARAT HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

II Categories of Financial Instruments

					•		
	Particulars	Note	As at March 31 st , 2024		As at March 31 st , 2023		
			Carrying Value	Fair Value	Carrying Value	Fair Value	
Α.	Financial Assets						
a)	Measured at amortised cost						
	 Cash and cash equivalents 	6	36.89	36.89	1.16	1.16	
	ii) Other bank balances	7	29.85	29.85	37.48	37.48	
	iii) Trade Receivables	5	110.87	110.87	164.32	164.32	
	iv) Other Financial Assets	8	49.14	49.14	50.33	50.33	
	Sub - total		226.75	226.75	253.29	253.29	
b)	Measured at fair value through profit or loss						
	i) Investment in mutual funds	4	4,278.11	4,278.11	3,812.44	3,812.44	
	Sub - total		4,278.11	4,278.11	3,812.44	3,812.44	
	Total Financial Assets		4,504.86	4,504.86	4,065.73	4,065.73	
В.	Financial Liabilities						
	Measured at amortised cost						
	i) Trade Payables		3.00	3.00	3.45	3.45	
	ii) Other Financial Liabilities	12	73.68	73.68	80.91	80.91	
	Total Financial Liabilities		76.68	76.68	84.36	84.36	

The carrying amounts of trade payables, other financial liabilities, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables and other financial assets are considered to be the same as their fair values due to their short term nature.

Fair value in Mutual fund has been considered as Level 1 as Hierarchy for the same are based on unadjusted prices in active market

III Financial risk management objectives

The Company has a system-based approach to risk management, anchored to policies and procedures and internal financial controls aimed at ensuring early identification, evaluation and management of key financial risks (such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk) that may arise as a consequence of its business operations as well as its investing activities. Accordingly, the Company's risk management framework has the objective of ensuring that such risks are managed within acceptable and approved risk parameters in a disciplined and consistent manner and in compliance with applicable regulation. It also seeks to drive accountability in this regard.

Liquidity Risk

The company has current assets aggregate to ₹ 4513.26 Lakhs (2023 - ₹ 4071.89 Lakhs) including Current Investments, Cash and cash equivalents and Other bank balances of ₹ 4344.85 Lakhs (2023- ₹ 3851.08 Lakhs) against an aggregate Current liability of ₹ 90.57 Lakhs (2023- ₹ 98.92 Lakhs) on the reporting date. Further, the Company's total equity stands at ₹ 4413.52 Lakhs (2023- ₹ 4017.03 Lakhs) and it has no borrowings. In such circumstances, liquidity risk or the risk that the company may not be able to settle or meet its obligations as they become due does not exist.

Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk - The company invests in mutual fund schemes of leading fund houses. Such investments are susceptible to market price risk that arise mainly from changes in interest rate which may impact the return and value of such investments.

Other Price Risk - Given the relatively short tenure of the underlying portfolio of the mutual fund schemes in which the company has invested, price risk is not significant.

Credit Risk

Company's deployment in financial instruments such as mutual funds and fixed deposit are made in high quality papers/counterparties.

The company has receivable balances with Lessee under the Operating Service Agreement, which are generally short term in nature. Accordingly, the Company has concluded that no provision for expected credit loss is required.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 Related Party Disclosures **Related Party Transactions**

i) Name of Related Parties and nature of relationships. ITC Limited, of which the Company is an Associate.

Key Management Personnel : ii)

Board of Directors

N Anand	Chairman & Non-Executive Director (Upto 2nd Jan 2024)
A Chadha	Chairman & Non-Executive Director (wef 11th Jan 2024)
A Thakar	Non-Executive Director
C K Koshy	Non-Executive Director
M Narayanan	Non-Executive Director
M S Bhatnagar	Non-Executive Director
B Sharma	Non-Executive Director

Chief Executive Officer: A Deshmukh Chief Financial Officer: N Goenka **Company Secretary:** S Gupta

iii) Disclosure of transactions between Company and Related Parties and status of outstanding balance as on 31.03.2024: ₹ in Lakhs

Particulars	ITC LIMITED		Key Management Personnel	
	2024	2023	2024	2023
License Fees Received Purchase of Services Remuneration of Key Management Personnel on Deputation Reimbursed Recoveries of Contractual Remuneration(Including Mangers on Deputation) Expenses Recovered Dividend Payments Remuneration to Key Management Personnel - Short Term Benefits - Director's Sitting Fees	405.94 1.12 87.94 644.89 26.88 34.68	431.99 1.80 80.89 705.51 25.25 34.68	- - - 0.05 10.71 7.00	- - 0.05 8.36 6.45
Balance amount recoverable Balance amount payable	157.39 2.02	212.86 2.57	-	-

Ratio Analysis and its elements: 23

Ratio	Numerator	Denominator	As at	As a
			March 31 st , 2024	March 31 st , 2023
Current ratio (in times)	Current Assets	Current Liabilities	49.83	41.16
Return on Equity ratio (in %)	Profit for the year	Average Shareholder's Equity	11.20	11.07
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (in times)	Revenue From Operations	Average Trade Receivable	2.50	2.79
Net Capital Turnover Ratio (in times)	Revenue From Operations	Working capital (Current assets-	0.08	0.09
		Current liabilities)		
Net Profit ratio (in %)	Profit for the year	Total Income	74.58	75.50
Return on Capital Employed (in %)	Profit before tax	Average Capital Employed	13.43	13.03
Return on Investment (in %)	Income from Investments	Time weighted average Investments	7.32	5.46

Debt- Equity Ratio, Debt Service Coverage ratio, Inventory Turnover ratio, Trade Payable Turnover Ratio are not applicable to the Company.

For K C Mehta & Co. LLP On behalf of the Board Chartered Accountants Firm's Registration No. 106237W/W100829 Anil Chadha Ashish Thakar Director Director Vishal P. Doshi Gurugram Gurugram DIN: 08073567 DIN: 09383474 Partner M.No. 101533 Avinash Deshmukh Nitish Goenka Sneha Gupta Place : Gurugram Date : 18th April 2024 Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Gurugram Gurugram Gurugram M. No. A64380



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Gujarat Hotels Limited

conclusion thereon.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of **Gujarat Hotels Limited** ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of these financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Sr. No.	Key Audit Matter	How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter		
1	Evaluation of uncertain legal position of leasehold land. (Refer note no. 20A to the financial statements) The lease period of land held by the Company has expired. The Company has filed necessary writ petition with High Court of Gujarat in April, 2013 which is still pending for adjudication. The Company has also made necessary application to State Government for Conversion of land from Leasehold to Freehold or Extension of Lease, which is in process. This matter being sub-judice, essentially involves significant judgement to determine the possible outcome and therefore, we have considered it as a key audit matter.	 We performed the following substantive procedures: Obtained details of application made to State Government. Obtained details of writ petition filed to the High Court of Gujarat and order copy passed by the High Court of Gujarat restraining the State Government from disturbing the actual possession over the property. Obtained details of progress in the matter. Read the minutes of the board meetings. Based on the procedures described, management's evaluation of the same is acceptable. 		
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, Corporate Governance Report and Shareholder's Information but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. The above-referred information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this audit report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance		In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the information, which we will obtained after the date of auditors' report and if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions necessitated by the circumstances and the applicable laws and regulations.		



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate

in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matters or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

- 1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in Annexure "A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
- 2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
 - a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and



belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

- b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;
- c. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;
- in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act;
- e. on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;
- f. with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure "B";
- g. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

the Company has neither paid nor provided for, any remuneration to its directors during the year; and

- with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
 - the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements – refer note 20A to the financial statements;
 - ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were material foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2024;
 - iii. there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company
 - iv. (a) the management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary

shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

- (b) the management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
- (c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.
- v. (a) The final dividend paid by the Company during the year which was declared for the previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment of dividend.
 - (b) The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of dividend proposed is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.
- vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all the relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

For K C Mehta & Co LLP Chartered Accountants Firm's Registration No. 106237W/W100829

Place: Vadodara Date: April 18, 2024 Vishal P. Doshi Partner Membership No. 101533 UDIN:24101533BKGZRD2890





INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors' Report to the members of **Gujarat Hotels Limited** ("the Company") on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, we report that:

- a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment ("PPE");
 - (B) The Company does not have any intangible assets, and hence reporting under clause (i)(a)(B) of the order is not applicable to the Company;
 - b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of PPE which, in our opinion is reasonable. The PPE which were to be covered as per the said program have been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
 - c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company. With respect to land, the Company has filed a writ petition with Gujarat High Court seeking that the Gujarat State Government be directed to take action on Company's application to have the leasehold land of the Hotel converted to freehold and transferred to Company as per the existing government policy in this regard.
 - d) The Company has not revalued its PPE (including Right of Use Assets) or intangible assets or both during the year, and hence reporting under this clause of the Order is not applicable to the Company;
 - e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.
- a) The Company does not have any inventory and therefore, reporting under clause (ii) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company;
 - b) The Company has not availed any working capital limits at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions and therefore, reporting under clause (ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
- The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in

the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties and therefore the reporting under clause (iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company;

- iv. The Company has not granted any loans, made any investments, or provided any guarantees or security to which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act apply and therefore, reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
- v. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are considered to be deemed deposits during the year, hence directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder are not applicable to the Company. According to information and explanations provided to us, no order has been passed by Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal.
- vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company and therefore, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
- vii. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records, the Company has been regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employee's state insurance, income □ tax, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employee's state insurance, income tax, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues were in arrears, as at March 31, 2024, for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable.
 - b) According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues as referred to in sub clause (a) above which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.
- viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).
- ix. a) The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from any lender and therefore, reporting under clause (ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company;
 - b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

any government authority.

- c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year and therefore, reporting under clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
- d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis have not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.
- e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the records of the company, we report that the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person and therefore, reporting under clause (ix) (e) of the order is not applicable to the Company.
- f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
- x. a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
 - b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year and therefore, reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company;
- xi. a) To the best of our knowledge and according to information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year;
 - b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report;
 - According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not received any whistleblower complaints during the year.
- xii. The Company is not a Nidhi company and therefore, reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
- xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

- xiv. a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
 - b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the period under audit.
- xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.
- xvi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us:
 - a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
 - b) the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year as covered under the requirements of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
 - c) the Company is a not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India.
 - d) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.
- xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.
- xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly this clause is not applicable.
- xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due;

- xx. Since the Company doesn't satisfy any of the criteria prescribed under Sections 135(1) of the Companies Act 2013 during the immediately preceding financial year, thus there was no requirement for the Company to spend any amount on CSR activities during the year ended March 31, 2024, Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) of the order is not applicable to the Company.
- xxi. The Company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements and therefore, reporting under this clause of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For K C Mehta & Co LLP Chartered Accountants Firm's Registration No. 106237W/W100829

Place: Vadodara Date: April 18, 2024 Vishal P. Doshi Partner Membership No. 101533 UDIN:24101533BKGZRD2890

ANNEXURE "B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to the Members of **Gujarat Hotels Limited** on the financial statements of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub⊡section 3 of Section 143 of the Act.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of **Gujarat Hotels Limited** ("the Company") as of March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the, "Guidance note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the

Companies Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

> For K C Mehta & Co LLP Chartered Accountants Firm's Registration No. 106237W/W100829

Place: Vadodara Date: April 18, 2024 Vishal P. Doshi Partner Membership No. 101533 UDIN:24101533BKGZRD2890 THIS PACE HAS BEEMLER BLAMMENTER TO MAILY

THIS PACE HAS BEEMLER BLAMMENTER TO MAILY





Welcomcafe Cambay 24x7 Fine Dining restaurant



Peshawri - Speciality restaurant offering North-West Frontier cuisine



